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Skanska UK Plc (Registered nember: §(1784752)

Group Strategic Report
For The Year Ended 315t December 2021

The Directors present their straiegic report of Skanska UK Ple (the *Company’) and its subsidiaries (logether the *Group') for
the year ended 315t December 2021,

Busivess model

Skanska UK Plc generates value through the bundreds of projects the Group executes each year. Every project should both be
profitable and delivered in line with Skanska’s values and ambition 10 be a leader within sustainability. Skanska UK aperations
mainly consist of construction activities. Operating units within the construction busingss collaborate in various ways, creating
operational and financial synergics that generate increased value.

Financial posltion and review

The Group recorded total revenucs from continuing and discentinued operations of £1,249.6 million (2020: £1,456.3 million)
and profit before interest and 1ax of £72.6 million (2020: £22.6 million) with a margin of 5.8% (2020: 1.6%). Profit before
interest and tax includes a £29. 1 million gain on the disposal of Infrastructure Services discussed below. See Note 35 for details
of the total results jncluding discontinued operations,

For continuing cperations, the Group recorded revenues of £1,122.7 million (2020: £1,122.3 millicn), profit before interest
and tax of £33.7 million (2020; £12.2 million) and a margin of 3.0% (2020: 1.1%]}. There were no non-recurring exceptional
items recorded in the year from continuing operations. For the year ended 315t December 2024, the Group’s underlying profit
before 1ax and interest for its continuing operations, edjusted for non-recurring exceptional charges of £21.7 million, was £33.9
million with & margin of 3.0%.

The Group's total equity increased by £94.5 million. Touwl equity atiributable to shareholders at the year-end was £362.7
millian (2020: £268.2 million). Our consolidated year-end cash and cash cquivalents totzlled £519.7 million (2020: £422.4
iilion), an increase of £97.3 million in the ycar. The year-on-year movement was predominantly dug to the proceeds from
the sale of Infrastructure Services operating unit and a number of projects approaching completion, partially ofiset by the
payment of £16,1 millior in dividends, to the immediate parent entity, Cash inflow from operating activitics was £88.3 mitlicn
(2020: inflow £6.3 million). The Group has no debt.

The coatinued impact from the COVID-19 pandemic was managed throughout the year through high levels of project serutiny
and cash management, with productivity levels remaining at good levels throughout the year. Good communicalion and
continued collaboration with our clients and supply parmers were key parts of the Business strategy,

[ 2020, the Group announced that it would withdraw from the Highways Maintenance, Rail Maintenance and Street Lighting
Maintenance sectors, therefore divesting its [nfrastructure Services operating unit. The sale of the operating unit was completed
on 30th April 2021, resulting in the recognition during the year of a pre-tax gain on disposal 0f £29.1 miltion. The lnfrastructure
Services opersting unit has been classified in these financial statements as a discontinued operation with the results from the
operating unit, along with the associated gain on disposal, being separately presenied from Group’s underlying continuing
operations. In accordance with IFRS 5, depreciation and amortisation of non-current asses associated with the disposal group
ceased when the business was classified as held for sale effective from 3 st December 2020. Had depreciation and amortisation
comtinued up until the date of disposal, the pre-tax gain on the sale, net of disposal costs, would have been £31.6 million.
Further informalion on the sale of Infrastructure Services can be found in Note 10.

The sale of Infrastructure Services and the associate decision to exit or wind down key contracts within the utilities sector were
made after a strategic review, which has led the Business to concentrate on the infrastructure and building markets. The aim
is to bring more focus to our customer relationships and service delivery, a5 well as create greater alignment between the
Campany's aclivities and our approach in other parts of the world.
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Principle risks and uncertainties

The Group's prineipal risks and uncertainties are related o the contracts it undertakes to perform. Exposure to credil, interest
rate and liquidity risk arises in the narmal course of the Group's business:

*  Mansgement has a credit policy in place. Credit evaluations are performed on all prospective customers grior to entering
into construction contracts and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. At the statement of financial
position date there was ne significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum expostre to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due ffom customers for contract work at the staiement of financial
position date.

*  The Group does not seck to reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest rates through the use of derivative financial
instruments. The Group mects its day to day working capital requirements through an inter-Company UK paoling
arrnpgement and docs not have any bank debt or other external borrowings or facilities.

+  Liquidity/cash flow risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty meeting obligations associated with financial
Habilities. The Group sims o mitigate these risks by setting and monitoring cash flow targels and by asscssing credit
worthiness of all material business parters.

«  CQVID-19 inttoduced increased risk to all areas of the Group during 2020. A risk averse culture coupled with open snd
collaborative relationships with our stakeholders has and will continue to mitigale the impact on delivery and financial
performaoce.

* A ycar on since the UK left the EU, Brexit has not had a material financial impact on the Group. A resson for this is that
we have worked closcly with our key supply chain to ensure the fallout from the EU exit (and COVID-19 retumn to work)
is managed from a risk perspective including availability of workforce. The Business continues to review all aspects of
how this legislative change could impact its aperation and ensurc steps are in place to mitigate any financiat degradation.

COVID-19 Pandemic

Whilst vaciants of COVID-19 persist, the UK’s economic bounce back was faster than predicted as spending surged after
lockdown measures were lified. Restrictions onsite and in offices were removed across the Group at the end of the first half of
2021, as per government guidelines and policy. Key reporting and review processes implemented at the start of the pandemic
continued to be used, enabling management to continue concentrating on cash managemen! and managing potential financial
exposure on a proactive basis.

Throughout the pandemic, the fundamental values that underpin our business have been prominent in al! decision making.
Clear communication and s1anding side by side with our dedicated and exceptional employees have been key, alongside a
suppartive and collaborative level of engagement with our clients and supply chain partners. The Group's existing Health &
Safety framework and culture has once sgain proven to be a real strength of our operational delivery, keeping everyone safe.

Delailed monitoring of the warkforee and its health continues to be paramount in Management's strategy, ensuring their salety
and also the safety of our partners.

Majar contract wins

A428 Black Car to Caxton Gibber — Delivery of a new 10-mile dusl carriageway on the A428, worth £507 miltion, Skanska is
responsible for the design and build of the scheme, which will improve jowneys between Milton Keynes, Bedford and
Cambridge.

30 South Colonnade — Structural refurbishmment of an existing 1 [-storey commercial-office building, YY London, on behalf
of its customer, Quadrant and funds managed by Oakiree Cupital Management, at Canary Wharf, London. Skanska will install
the new cladding, construet three new office floors and a new reception. The value to the Group is £13% millien.

Castlewaod House — Construction of an 11-storey office building with retail and restaurant usc, os well as 18 residential
apartrents. Mechanical, clectrical and public health scrvices installaton will also be undertaken by Skanska. The 260,000 sq.
ft project in London is worth £83 million to Skanska.

152 Area East - Censtruction of 2,000 piles for the Skanska Costain STRABAG joint venture, which is working to deliver
the London tunnels on behall of HS2, The piling contract is worth £93 million, The project wiil provide foundations for two
new bridge structures, ane of the largest current open-cut retaining boxes in Burope snd the new Eusten Cavern shafl. As part
of the project, the team will be developing new technigues te reduce carbon, ineluding the use of low carbon concrete.
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Laser Focus & Further Review

In late 2017 the Laser Focus Plan was launched with the aim to ensure we remain a profitable and sustainabie business. With
an over-arching objective 1o hit or beat tender margin on every contrace, the first phase of the plan was (o focus on five key
areas: Right people, Design control, Understanding and applying the deal, Quality, and Forecasting and Reporting. The second
phasc of the Laser Focus Plan was launched in the first quarter of 2018, which following a strategic review of our markets and
sectors, which as already discussed in the financial position and review, resulted in a reorganisation of the Group's Operating
Units; reducing the number from 9 to 7.

2019 saw a consolidation of the plan with the Group ensuring each key area had been fully embedded. Improved Project
pecformance, continued de-risking of the Group financials, increased underlying Operating Tncome % and the strengthening
of the Balance Sheet has given Management a strong belief that the plan is having the impact it was designed to achieve.

In early 2020, the Group announced that it would withdraw from the Hiphways Maintenance, Rail Maintenance and Street
Lighting Maintenance sectors, thecefore divesting its Infrastructure Services operating unit. The sale of the operating unit was
completed in 2021. In addition, the decision was made to exit key contracts within the Utilities operating unit, running these
down, which resulted in a closure of the unit at the end of 2021.

Governance Review & Update

In 2018, Skanska AB undertook o review of its Governance framework and associated procedures and processes. In 2020 and
2022, ns per guidance from Skanska AB which dictates a review should be catried out every two years, the Group completed
a similar process 1o ensure our framework was aligned and could achicve similar benefits, These benefits include improving
effectiveness, continued reduction of risk throughout the Group and to help cach and every employee live by Skanska values.
The updated Governance framewark is now leaner, has much clearer structure and is accessible to all users.

In addition to the above, since 15t January 2018, the UK Group has applied the Wates Corporaie Governance Prineiples for
Large Privatc Companies which enhances Lthe Skanska AB’s governance framework that the Group hes adhered 10 historically.

During the COVID-19 pandemic use of enhanced T has ensured that the business and senior manapement have been able 10
ensure governance and contro! has remained consistent throughout.

Lastly, the implementation of a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system has eontinued, with governance, standard
procedures and controls being a key element of its design and build.

Values provide business benefits

We want our strang Skanska values Lo guide everything we do and they are essential Lo conlributing to socicly. Increasingty,
employees want to work for companies with clear valucs. We are seeing more customers and partners choose Skanska in part
because of our valucs. Through what we do and how we work, we help ensure sustainable futures for our people, cusiomers,
and communitics. We focus on the sustainability areas in which we can make the most significant positive contributions:
Safety, Ethics, Green, Community Investment, and Enclusion and Diversity.

All of these areas relate to our core business and expertise and are interconnected.
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Safety, health and wellbeing

During 202! we continued to maintain our focus on improving our culture and performance in the areas of safety, health and
wellbeing (SHW). During this period, we have delivered a reduction in number of potentiz! fatalitics to the lowaest Jevel ever,
This hias been as a result of vur programme on becoming outstanding at Lifting, Loading and Lowering operaiions. The lost
timc accident rate (LTAR) has returned 1o pre pandemic levels, and we are continuing to evaluate the reasons behind the
reduction, Our initial analysis identifics several factors for the reduction in LTAR during the peried. They can be sammed up
as being, clear on expected behaviours, clear communication on the importance of compliance and the and immediacy of the
risk to health of workers and others they come into contact with. Werk is being undertaken to determine how these key leaming
points can be applicd across all operations ar all times,

The performance of the business was overshadowed by a fatality on one of aur projecis. Following the incident significant
work has been undertaken with the HSE, manufacturers and plant operators to establish the cause of the incident. As a reselt
of leamnings from the incident, we will be removing certain types of equipment from our operations. We have supparted the
industry in raising awareness of the risk of injury during the opcration of this type of equipment and provision of additionnl
operator training. We are supporting the work of several parties to review and consider amending the EN standard to prevent
the possibility of being crushed by a stabiliser.

During 2021 we have continued to progress our work on moving the focus on safety and health from site operations into the
design and planning stage. By elimination and substitution of the wark activities to reduce exposure to risk, we are confident
wo will further improve safety, health znd wellbeing as well as operational efficiency snd quality. One cutstanding example
shows that we reduced exposure to the risk including fulls from height, items falling and manual handling by 40,800 hours on
one work activity on one praject.

We have continued to comply with COVID-19 lepislation and guidance and have followed the changes introduced during the
year. Our gencral approach has been more cautious than the government position and requiremenis have been cased once the
impact of changes have becn given lime Lo work through socicty. Work or and communication of our wellbeing programme
including mental health has been increased during this time. This has been well received and we continue to build on our
mental health programme. Duting 2022 we are expanding our Mental Health programme focus from understanding mental
health into cresting the right environment for people to thrive,

Our continued with our Injury-free environment programme {IFE) which is now in its twelfih year and we are currently
reviewing the programme with a view of updating the programme and adding to the programme with a focus on risk awareness.
Our mental health programme continues to be effective, and the mental health smbassadoer comrmunity continues to thrive and
support the programme. An independent survey af 97 of our customers, 246 supply chain pariners and 2465 employees rated
Skanska a5 a high performer in torms of SHW, We have continued to maintain ISO45001 certification.

Ethics

Within the Group we work in line with Skanske AB's Code of Conduct to increasingly act in a sustainable, transpareat and
responsible manner, to better meet the long-term demands of the Group's sharcholders, customers and employses, as well as
socicty at large. Our aim is to ensure all projects reflect our purpose and are not only profitable but are delivered without
ethical breaches and with a transparcat and inclusive culture. During 2021 we maintained our focus on ethics leadership by
retraining all our employees on our Code of Conduct and ensuring ali new croployees are trained before they stant work with
Skanska. In addition, our employces are required to take part in regular 'dilemma’ discussions where they debate how they
would approach a varicty of situations, A key thread throughout the year was an action plan looking at our ethical processes
in areas such as inclusion and diversity, modemn slavery, supply chain understanding, etc. As well as internal communications,
we place additional focus on understanding our ethical respansibilities in relation to partners and suppliers. We developed our
processes for scrutinising the ethical cultare of potential panners, and 1w forther engage our supply chein we work to ensure
our Supplier Code is discussed in start-up meetings with suppliers, and we include cthics as an agenda item at our various
supplicr engagemeni events.

Tn 2022, a total of 18 reports of alleged breach of the Code of Conduct were received by the Skansks UK Ethics Commiitiee
(2021: 37). Cases were calegorisced in line with the 1opics in Skanska’s Code of Conduct. The largest number of reports were
concerned with HR-related matiers, such as behaviour in the workplace. Other frequent categories of reports were heaith and
safety {including COVID-19) and Company property. Across all categoties, 2 cases determined a breach of the Code of
Conduct (2020: 8), howcver neither of them were considered a high risk (o the business.
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Environment

The Company and its subsidiary undenakings are required to pursue environmental policies that comply with relevant
legislation end standards applicable to their particular disciplines. Beyond this, Skanska UK, in live with Skanska Graup, is
commilied to protecting the environment and making a positive contribution (o a more sustainzble world throtgh improving
the environmental performance of all our products and services. Furthermore, Skanska UK is committed to operating with
nel-zero carbon emissions by no later thap 2045, and since the publication of this ebjective in 2019 has committed significant
resources into developing industry leading de-carbonisation capability. Qur aim is to be the most respected contrgctor by our
customers for our approach to sustainability and in particularly our low carbon capability. Key areas of progress / highlights
include:

»  Continuing our excellem track record in operational environmental management, we learnt from ow expericnce in
2020 of working with different operating parameters resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, and a5 a result our
environmental management performance has steadily improved across all of our projects. Qur intemmal environmental
leadership team continucs to focus on improved monitoring and reporting, and on delivering better interventions
against causes of environmental incident near misses. An cxample is the development and roll-out of a new bespoke
environmental compliznce training scheme which is targeted at site and operational lcadership roles and is more
comprehensive than industry standacd environmentai site management training courses.

«  Supporting winning profitable sustainable busitiess through continued engagement with our clicnts on sustainability
performance and maintaining our green brand through demonstrating visible industry leading influence. In 2021
Skanska UK was involved with several industry sustainability events, such as hosting the 2021 Highways UK event
as the *sustainability sponsor®. Nolably, Skanska maintained a substantial presence at the COP26 UN Climate Change
Conference in Glasgow, with representatives attending both the Green Zone and Blue Zone, as well as the Sustainable
[nnovation Forum, Skanska UK CEOQ Gregor Craig and Skanska Group SVP Sustainability Lena Hk bath spoke at
events in the Blue Zone. Other industry sppointments included Skanska UK CEO Gregor Craig being appointed to
the Construetion Leadership Council's (CLC) C02nstruciZero Advisary Board, Director of Environment Adam
Crossley maintaining his appeintments as Chair of the UK Green Building Council’s (UKGBC) Contractors’ Forum
and member of the Construction Leadership Council’s Green Construction Board (GCB), as well as being appointed
10 the steering group of the UKGBC's Whale Life Carbon Roadmap project. Further to these appointments, Skanska
UK collaborated with othes industry bodies to shape and then cormmit to two cross-industry net-zero schemes: Climale
Group’s Steel Zero initiative; which is 2 pledge to purchase net-zero by 2050, and Cambridge Centre for Smart
Infrastructure and Construction’s Carbon Reduction Code, to which Skanska UK was one of the few ‘champion’ level
signatories. Skanska UK also mainfained engagement with two kcy green industry bodies, the All-Party
Parliamentary Group for the Environment (APEG) and the Supply Chain Sustainability School (SCSS).

s Skanska UK continues to deliver on our multi-year strategy to significantly improve our capability as a business to
de-carbonise at a quicker rate than our industry, and to suppart our clients in their de-carbonisation journeys, following
our 2019 commitment ta operate with net-zero carbon smissions by 2045, The plan comprises 6 focus areas:

o  Skills and capabilities for key roles: During 2021 we trained over a hundred key siaff in project
leadership, procurement, design and commercial on carbon reduction skills;

o Carbon data / measurement: We coatinue to publish an annual transparent estimate of our direct and
indirect (supply chain) emissions to the market;

o Digital cost and carbon management tools: We have invested in project level digital carbon and cost
management (ools;

o Net-zero materials (focussing on concrete and steel): We have established a low carbou materials
expert group and have trialled a varicty of low carbon alternatives across our projecls;

o Net-zero plant and transport: We mandated the use of hydro-treated vegetable oil (HVO) biofucl
across our dircet-hired plant, purchasing over im litres and avoiding circa 3000 (C02e, and we
continue toll-out of electric vehicles across our company car fleet, with circa 25% of our flect
currently electric; and

o  Supply chain collaboration: We begun business-to-business collaborations with a small collection of
selected supplicr panniers,

The delivery of our net-zero and broader environmental objectives is governed internally through Skanska UK's overall
business planning process and is represented at the top management team, Extermally we continue to demonstrate our
credentials through a range of certifications, including continued verification under the Achilles *Carbon Reduce’ programme
{formerly Certified Emissions Measurement and Reduction Scheme (CEMARS)), maintenance of 18014001:15 for
environmental management, and successfully maintaining external re-certification to the PAS2080 Carbon Management in
{nfrastructure specification. Qur aim is to invest in environmental performance and sustamnable business and, through continual
improvement and innovatien, to maintain our industry leading position.
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Streamtined Energy #nd Carbon Reporting

The tble below details the Group’s energy and carbon consumption for the year ended 3 1st December 2021,
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(1) Emissions data for 2021 exclude 21,399 TCO2e from the Infrastracture Services operating unit which was disposed of in
the year and presented as a discontinued operalion in these financial statements. To increase comparability, restated
emissions data for 2020 and the 2010 base year excluding Infrastruclure Scrvices has been presented above, alongside

the previously published data.

Reasons for Change in Emissions

Carbon emissions continue to drop from our 201 0 base line and good progress has been made reducing carbon intensity through
a range of carbon reduction policies and initiatives across the Company. Carbon reduction is a strategic focus of the
Company’s 2024 business plan, and a six-point action plan has been implemented to sccelerate emissions reduction,
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Emissions from Skanska commercial vehicles and company cars has dropped considerably fom 2020, This is due to the
combination of three factors, the completion of a major framework contract which had a heavy retiance on road vehicles,
COVID-19 related travel disruption and the implementation of the Company’s Electric First car policy. At the end of 2021
Battery Electric Vehicles (BEVs) made up 19% of the company car fleet, 41% of the car flect is classified as Ultra Low
Emission Vehicles and the fleet CO2 average was 70.3gCO2/%m. The Electric First car policy complements the Company's
fiexible working and green travel allowznce policies representing savings in both direct business travel and indirect staff’
commuting emissions.

Skanska's Law Carbon Fuel policy was tmplemented in April 2021 which started the phased inroduction of sustainably
sourced hydrotreated vegetable oil (HVO) fuel across our site activities. 49% of site fuel consumed in 2021 was HVO leading
to 4,400t of avoided COZe emissions. Without this policy emissions in this arca would have been significantly increased on
2020. Under our Lew Carbon Fuel policy, we continue to expand the use of electric- and hydrogen-powered plant alongside
advance biofucls.

Quantificatica and Reporting Methodology

Skanska UK holds certification 1o [SO14064-1:2018 and we use this, UK Government publications and the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol to guide our emission quantification and reporting. Estimations and cxclusions for discontinued activities have
been clearly identified.

In 2021 Skanska UK achicved platinum certification through the Carbon Reduce scheme {formerly CEMARS) recognising
11 years of year-on-year carbon reductions across our direet emissions. We are proud of this achievement bul continue io
work towards our overall goal of net zero emission across all Greenhouse Gas scapes by 2645.

Skanska UK reports cstimates for scope 3 emissions associated with the activities of our supply chain across all our projects,
We continue to work on improving the data on these emissions so we can more accurately target reductions initiatives with
our customers through the supply chain.

Organisational Boundary

Skanska UK uses the financial control approach and IV emissions are included on an equity share bases.

Base Year

2010 is our chesen baseline year which is the first year of formal emission reporting under the Carbon Reduce scheme,

External Assursnce Statement

Emission reporis are audited annually to a reasonable level of assurance and documents supporiing this cerlification can be
found at haps:/Awww.toitu.co.nz/our-members/members

Carbon Offsets
The Group has not purchased any carbon oflsets in the period.

Great People

In 2021, we developed our 2024 business plan. To deliver our business goals; operating safely, efficiemly and innovatively,
we outlined how we will continuously engage with and develop our people to build an inclusive, values driven and
performance-based culture. A critical platform arca is the people and culture action plan, which has threc core focus areas,
Leadership and culture, skills and capahitities and best employee cxpericnce.

Qur purpose, we build for a better socicly and our organisational values - Care for Life, Act Ethically and Transparcntly, Be
Better Together and Commil to Customers - remain unchanged, and continue to underpin cverything we do, forming the
foundations of the business plan. We recognise that building for a better society is more than just what we do, but also how
we do it. In 2021 we developed a new ‘living our values® behavioural framewark to suppont the delivery of the plan.  This
framewaork is 2 tool 10 communicate the expected behaviours from all Skanska employees and replaces the 2015 Skanska
Leadership Profile.

We know that being successful requires the right behaviours and skillsets not just for today but also for the future. We remain
commitied Lo cnsuring that our project teams are scl up lo deliver the best outcomes for cur customers and their customers,
and to ensure we deliver a sustainable financial retum for the Group. Qur *Right People® and redesigned workforce planning
processes undetpin the way we resource our projects through Lhe entire project lifecycle, ensuring we get a diverse balance of
sector expericoce, potential and delivery expertise in operational and leadership roles.

We encourage our peeple Lo share in the success of the Group by participating in SEOP, the Skanska employce ownership
program. In 2021, 34% of our employees chose to invest in the Skanska Group through SEOP participation.
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Recruitment

The Group welcomed 656 new employees in 2021 of which 29% were female and 23.6% identified as being from a minority
ethnic heritege. In common with the majority of companies worldwide, we saw an increase in our veluntary turnover to 1 4%,
Over 500 people successfully applied for new roles internally, kecping important skills and experience within the business.

The stability of Skanska helped to increase pur ttractiveness in the marketplace, leading to increased applicalion numbers
with over 20,000 applications for ncarly 1,400 vacancies (for temporary and permanent roles) and saving over £2 million in

agency fecs through direct hinng.
Carcers und develepment

During the early stages of the pandemic, we put our face-to-face development programmes on hold, and moved development
focus into our online e-learning platforts *Skanska Academy’ which is accessible to all erployees. In 2021, many of our
programmes recommenced but were delivered virtually and we took the apportunity to redesign our formal lesdership
programmes, ta ensure they align to the new busisess plan. These will be introduced in 2022, A virual ‘adjusting o change®
programme was also introduced, which included topics such as children’s mental health, building resilience and coping with
loss and bereavement to support employees respond to the challenges that the pandemic brought.

Our annual performance and development review process, formatly includes both an end of yewr and a mid-year discussion.
In 2020/21, we provided guidance to managers to exiend their discussions beyond cmployece performance against set goals
and behavioural expectations, to include conversations on work life balance, mental health and career aspiration. The annual
cycle is recorded within an anfine system, Skanska Talent. Managers were also strongly encouraged to extend their discussions
beyond these formal cyeles to ensure employees were provided with regular support in these chalienging times.

Qur personal development portfolio is very comprehensive, demonstrating our commitment to both technical training and
mansgement development. This commilment provides the Group with the highest levels of employee competence, together
with the strongest calibre of people and business leadership. We colleborate with leading business schools both in the UK and
internationally to provide our leaders with leading edge and stimulating development and growth. Our continued approach to
development and promoting from within whercver possible means we that are able to grow much of the leadership talent we
will geed for the future.  An example is our Design Management Academy, which is a support and leamning framework
providing access to guidance, key reference material and training to all those involved in the management of design within
Skanska. Established in 2020, the academy continues to provide worid-leading content and best practice to our employees.

Our Talent and Succession process is run annually, with quarterly interventions ensuring regular progress is made in managing
and developing key talen.. We use robust psychemetric assessments deployed by professionally-trained internal and external
pssessors to validate potential, with assessed employees having their own targeted development plan, allowing them to
coatinually grow their skiils and acceterate their carcers within the organisation. During 2021, 57 inlernal assessments were
completed by our in house British Psychological Society accredited assessor, with a further 45 completed by our extemnal
partziers.

Inclusion and Diversity

Our inclusion and diversity (T&D) vision is ell about delivering high performance by enabling everyone to bring their whole
self to work.  We are clear that everyone should be treated with dignity and respect within the workplace, and in 2021 we
commissioned a research study by an external company, named 'Our Lived Experience’, to find owt how people in Skanska
UK felt about inclusion, and to identify the ways that peaple from different groups and backgrounds expericnce our culture,
Following the research, workshops took place with our Executive Managernent Tearmn and senior leaders across the business
10 understand the report and o be clear upon how being more inclusive will support delivery of our business objectives. Clear
strategic aarratives about why inclusion is important to cach business arca, was created as an outcome,

We reworked the 1&D govemnance, to ensure inclusive strategic decision making, leadership and behaviours are cmbedded
across the business and there is alignment to business and network objectives.

We have established an 16D leaders group {made up of the CEQ and representatives from senior leadership, HR, and our
employee network leads) and a working group (departmental responsibility for 1&1 leads) who come together three times a
year to share and learn from one another, Specifically within the leaders’ group, we focus on creating an environment for the
two-way sharing of perspectives between network Icads and senior leaders.

To provide further insight alongside the Lived Experience Project, we analyse data from our pulse and engagement surveys,
alongside *business as usual’ processes such as recruitrnent and performance reviews, to ensure we understand the dilTerences
in the responscs of different demographic groups,

We continued to promote our ‘Flex-it” framewaork which aims to provide all employees with informal flexibility about where
and when they work. It marks a significant shift in working patterns for many of our people, allowing them to oplimisc their
personal productivity and wellbeing. It is & key step in creating and implementing new ways of working that reflect our
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changing times and circumstances and is fundamental to making the construction industry attractive te ali. 'We have so far
choscn not to impose business wide expectations on working patterns, but rather to cnable teams to find suitable patterns of
work to deliver business prioritics alongside ensbling individuzgl aceds to be accommadated. We continue to watch carefully
how this is reccived by employee groups and those working for the business.

We continued our flexible working pilots with Timewise and Buitd UK an an industry-wide flexible working programme to
identify barriers and find solutions 1o adopting flexible working practices on project sites, as we are commitied to ensuring we
find Aexible working solutions for all types of roles, including those with construction site restrictions.

People engagement
We remain focuscd on creating and maintaining high levels of people engagememnt and enablement.

In 2021 we continued apportunities for two-way communication through regutar CEO ‘all hands” briefings, leadership ‘ualk
time’ sessions, and regular pulse surveys. We asked peneral questions around topics such as anxietry to retumning after a period
of lockdown, and followed up on previous questions around topics such as desired working patlerns.  The responses have
shaped our flexible working zpproach, mental health support and COVID-19 testing procedure, Results show us that we
maintained a high level of engagement and enablement, with nearly $7% of respondents in February 2021 expressing positive
feclings towards self and/or company.

Market Making

The Group's business plan 2024 is to pursue a market penciration strategy 10 achieve profitable revenue growth, This is
achieved through a customer-centric approach that secks o maximizes market share in chosen sectors.

To ensure the success of this market strategy, there is an ongoing assessment of the investment appetite a1 both sector [evel
and at the level of the customer. This assessment detcrmines the projected demand for the core capabilities of those producrs
and services where the Group has a proven track record of successful delivery. Assessment of the competitor environment
provides further analysis that informs the Group on its most likely route to schieving its markel strategy.

The Group airns to be an industry leader in listening, understanding and acting on customers’ needs. To achicve this outcome
the capabilities of the Group continue to develop in the following areas:

+  Customer acconnt menagement — A framework for customer account management that is developed and embedded
ucross the Group. This includes a customer classification asscssment that is reviewed annually, where customer
insight provides n net promotor score asscssment.

»  Early engagement with customers — To gneble an optimised outcome for the customer and for the Group.

»  Sector & customer insights -~ Assessment of the suitability of the current market strategy 1o inform management of
the future sales pipeline. The Group continues to invest in customer relationship management seftware (Sales{orce)
to enable this.

s Create customer-specific value propositiens — providing & deeper understanding and active promotion of the Group’s
products & services to enable eross-selling to customers,

The values of the Group are assesscd through the customer measurement programme. This continucs to inform that the Group*s
values provide a differentiator to customers and that these are a desirable part of the offer to \he market. To this end, the
strategic alignment of existing and future cusiomcrs is assessed with the Group's own values. Where there is a close alignment
of shared values, there is evidence of repeat business with those castomers.

For the year 2021, mitigalion mcasures for the events of both Brexit and the glabal COVID-19 pandemic reguired the Grayp
to continue 1o apply an appropriate risk management approach. This required a continuation of clese assessmoent of the market
supply and demand pressures relating to both. Far both events the Group’s market strategy has proven to be resilient where
the outlook is stronger than the general market in which the Group operates.

The Group conlinues to apply slrong risk management procedures at both corporate and project level. This ensures we select
the right projects that will continue to deliver the expectations of our customers and shareholders.

Early contractor involvement

Demand continues 10 increase among the Group's customers for help with designing functional and cost-saving sclutions,
Joining a project at an carly stage aids the Group, in early identification and management of risk with its customers, as well ag
in helping customers be more successful in their core businesscs. This is a procurement route that we increasingly demand
during our apportunity selection phase.
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Operational Efficiency

We remain focused on improving the operational efficiency of our business, especially construction projects. This means
cnabling project teams to deliver their contracts faster and at lower cost throughout the whole project life cycle.

We do this by:
Improving productivity through
¢ Rapid adoption of new digital ways af working
s Deployment of Innovation and industrialisation specialist expertise
s  Coordination and prioritisation of productivity improvement opportunities
Managing our supply chain to
= Obtain best value from the right supply chain
»  Ensure collaboration for supplier innovation and decarbonisation
*  Achieve efficient and sustainable procurement and supply chain processes
Providing Engincering consultancy services to
s  Improve the efficiency of construction using MMC
»  Increasc the provision of specialist technical expertise in our construction projects
&  Manage engineering related Risk and Opportunity

The Group has identified project productivity as an area thai, by undergoing a significant transformalion over the next Business
Plan peried, can help us achieve our business objectives. We are focusing on the adoption of technology and the exploitation
of data to improve our project productivity. A tactical cffon has been approved &t Group level that will deliver skills, tools,
and processes to make our projects more productive.

We have successtully retained 1SO19650 BIM Level 2 certification at Group level, which certifics our business as being
capable of collaborating with project team stakeholders digitally. This is a requircment on all publicly funded projects. We
have also gained ISO56000 accreditation at Group level. This standard ceriifies that we have a suitsble framewark to
implexrient, maintain, and improve Innovation Management Systems. This accreditation supports our Group clforts lo
collaborate with our customers 1o improve the quality and value from their projects.

Laoking ahead we will continue 10 focus on the well-being of our people and our supply chain, The post pandemic world is
stifl evolving, and this includes the balance between remote and co-located working. We will strengthen the relationships with
our key supply chain through increased communication, closer collaboration, and ethical and transparent behaviours. Equally,
we will support our direct teams with continuous updates and communication of our Charter, which clearly articulates our
purpose, core operating principles, core commitmenis, and shared mindset and behaviours. We will continue to strive for an
inclusive workforce and supply chain.

Compliance with the Mudern Slavery Act 2015

The Group is committed to ensuring that all of its business operations are free from involvernent with slavery or human
trafficking and this it sccks to ensure, primarily, through its Susiainable Procurement Policy.

The Skanska Code of Conduct and Skanska Supplier Code of Conduct include express provisions for Fair Working Conditions,
besed on the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the conventions of the International Labour Organisation and the UN's
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights. The Code of Conduct requires employees to treat each other with respect
and dignity and to raise concerns about unfair warking conditions. The Supplicr Code of Conduct extends these pringiples lo
sub-coptractors and suppliers,

The Group ensures there & enhanced modem slavery education and awnreness tirough our external Supply Chain
Sustainability School with procurement guidance notes and toolbox talks for projecls and contracts being made available to
the School's 50,000+ members.

Skanska's Modemn Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy, which provides greater detail on our approach to the gradication of
these issues from our business and our supply chain, is published via a link on the homepage of our website. This updated
policy was approved by the Board of Dircclors of the Company on 20th June 2022. It is reviewed and published on an annual

basis,
Market & Outlook

As we closed 2021, we booked over £1.3 billion of orders in our chosen markets, supported by £519.7 million of cash with no
leverage or debt, placing the Group in a strong position. We reraain mindfil of the market conditions driven bry the wider
economic and geo-political challenpes and continue te work proactively with both our customers and supply chain to monitor
and mitigate headwinds in commodity and cnergy cosls to pratect the financial performance of the Business in the short,

medium- and long-lerm.
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Sectjon 172 Companles Act 2006

Section [72 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a Director of' a Company to act in the way he or she considers, in good faith,
would most likely promete the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. In doing this, section 172
requires Birectors to have regard to, amongst other matters, the:

- likely consequences of anmy decisions in the long-term,

- interests of the Company's employees;

- need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

- jmpact of the Company's operations on the community and environment,

- desirability of the Company maintaining a repuiation for high standards of business conduct; and

- peed to act fairly as between members of the Company.

Ini discharging our section 172 dulies we have regard to the malters set out above. In addition, we also have regard to ather
factars which we consider relevant to the decision being made, By considering the Company's purpese, vision and values
together with its strategic priorities and having a process in place for decision making, we aim to make sure that our decisions
are consistent and predictabie.

We delegate autharity for day-lo-day management of the Campany to senior leadership teams and then engage management
in seiting, approving and oversceing execution of the business sirategy and related policies. Board meetings are held regularly
in which the Directors consider the Company's activities and make decisions, As a part of those mectings the Directors receive
information in a range of different formats to ensure that they bave regard to scetion 172 matters when making relevant
decisions.

The Company's key stakeholders are its workforce, customers, supplicrs snd ie local communities in which it aperates. The
views of and the impact of the Company's activities on those stakeholders are an important cansideration for the Directors
when making relevant decisions. The size and spresd of both the Company's stakeholders and the Skanska Group means that
generally our stakeholder cngagement takes place at an operational and Group level. We find that as well as being a more
efficient and effective approach, this also helps us achieve a greater positive impac! on environmental, social and other issues
than by working alone as an individual Company. For details of the engagement which takes place with the Group's
stakeholders please see page 16.

The Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Compeanies provides a framework for the Group to not anly
demonstrate how the Board makes decisions for the long-term success of the Company and its stakeholders (sec Principle 6 -
Suikehoiders, of the Corporate Governance Report within these Financial Statements), but also having regard to how the Board
ensures the Group complics with the requirements of section 172 of the Cornpanies Act 2006, Qur reporting against the Wates
Principles has been included on pages [3 1o 18,

We set out below an example of how we have had regard to the matters sct oul in section 172(1)&}-(f) when discharging our
section 172 duty and the effect of that on decisions taken by us:

Throughout 2022, the Bourd will continue to review and challenge how the Group can impreve engagement with its employees
and stakeholders.

On behalf of the board:

CKK Gangotra - Direaf

Date: 15th July 2022
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Statement of Corpnrate Governance arrangements

Far the year ended 31s1 December 2021, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the UK Group
has applied the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companics (published by the Financial Reporting
Cauncil {‘FRC") in Degember 2019 and avaitable on the FRC website).

The disclosures below explain how the Group has applied these principles in the context of its corporate governance
arrangements.

Principle 1 - Purpose snd Leadership

As one of the UK's leading contractors, Skanska is an inclusive and responsible business that is helping to buitd for a belter
saciety. Known for major projects across the country, we arc building, upgrading and maintaining the country’s infrastructure.

Drawing on our Scandinavian heritage, we are green, innovative and values-driven. We bring together people and technology,
us parl of our guest to make construction o safer and more collaborative industry.

Purpose

The Group's purpose and mission is to build for a better society. What we do and how we do it contributes to a sustainable
future for our people, our customers and for the communities in which we aperate. We deliver our purpose through our great
variety of projects and innovative, sustainable solutions. It is about what we do as well as how we do it. We aim to lead in
health and safety, cthics, green, inciusion and diversity and community investment - our Sustainability areas —~ and we do that
through our commitment, passion, and expertise. This creates greater shared value for our people, for society and for Skanska.

Values and Culture

The Group’s four core values are: care for life, act ethically & transparently, be bener — together and commit 1o customers,
Qur values express our moral foundations and compass. They cxpress who we are, how we behave and what we believe in,
and help us in our day-to-day work. Values provide business benefits (page 4) and living our values will make us successful.
Actions that are not in line with, or may jeopardise, our values are not aceepted.

We strive to create value for our shareholders and to have a positive impact on socicty. We don’t believe it is about doing one
ar the other; it is about doing both at the same time. Profil is needed to deliver on purpase and a strong purpose will contribute
1o profit. Every project should both be profitsble and delivered in line with the Skanska values and our ambition 1o be a leader
within Sustainbility. The Group’s operations consist of construction and related activities. Operating units within several
streams collaborate In various ways, creating operational and financial synergies that generate increased value,

The Skanska Cede of Conduct delines how all Skanska employees should work. The aim of the Code is to provide clear
direction for gveryday behaviour, helping us to live our values and maintain our position as a safe, ethical and sustainable
business. Qur aim is to ensure all projects reflect our purpose and are not only profitable but are delivered without ethical
breaches and with a transparent and inclusive culture.

People are at the heart of pur business; we aim to create an inclusive culture with an environment where emplayees can be
themselves and be the best they can be. We offer our employees opportunities to develap and learn. The Group sets a culture
bascd on transpareacy, values and high performance, wilh employees working together towards common goals, This culture
is embedded through senior management engagement, performance reviews, reward structures, as well as training and
induction. We mouitor the cffectiveness of this culture and communication through stafT surveys, exil inlerviews and fecdback
sessions with Directors.

Strategy

In the first half of 2022, the Group entered its next plan cycle and launched Business Plan 2024 across the business. At the
core of the new Business Plan remains Skanska’s long-term purpose and values. The new plan follows a market penetration
strategy, aiming to increase our share of work in our mest successful sectors and grow revenues with exisling customers. Along
with & challenging set of financial targets, the outcame of Business Plan 2024 is to make progress against our ambition to
become the most respected construction company in the UK.

13
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Strategic objectives
The first stage of the Laser Focus Plan (page 4) focused on strategic objectives in five key areas:

Right people - Making sure we use objective, performance-based information based on evidence when we appoint geople to
key project positions. This is strategically important because people in these pivotal roles take values-driven decisions which
significantly affect the successful delivery of projects. The key objective is 1o colleet factual information about our projects
and employees performance and then making surc we use it to drive a successful, diverse and collaborative team enabling the
best opportunity to achieve profit with purpose.

Design control - Design control covers everything abouf how we asscss, manage and deal with project design. This Is eritically
important for the success of our projects and has a significant impact on our clients and our profitability, We have recognised
that early collaboration with our partners on design in an open but controlled environment gives the best chance of success.
This refates to ail parts of a preject from tender and procurement through to defivery and handover.

Understunding and applying the deal - This is about knowing the contract, acting on that knowiedge and recognising the
comumercial impact it has ou our stakeholders as well as upon ourselves. A collaborative, no surprises environment is the goal
ensuring all pasties are able 1o achieve their objectives, be they financial or operational.

Quality ~ We recognise that the cost of “lack of quality” is 8 burden (o any construction business through the subsequent
rework of design and delivery. Therefore, this objective is about ensuring a “right first time” mentality is driven through all
arcas of the Business, Using recognised and professional techniques through to sharing best practice and empowering our
cmiployees o innovate is at the heart of the objective. A clear and realistic plan that can be actioned and measured is key to
each part of any project.

Forecasting and reporting - It is fundamental that reporting needs to be accurate, transparent and consistent across the Group.
This alsc allows fer more gccurate forecasting, empowering the BU to be able to undersiand the opportunities available to it
and the challenges it faces, The rollout of new project valuation systems alongside raining and support for Project teams has
been vital in achieving this objective.

By focusing on the strategic objectives in these key arcas in the short-term increases profitability and in the long-teem increases
stakeholder value and sustainability. These are monitored through masgins achieved on projects as well as employee appraisals
and customer surveys.

In order for the Laser Focus Plan to be suecessful we need to: basc our decisions on fact and realism; scrutinise effectively;
learn from success and failure; address under performance and do what we say we would do. At their core is the Skanska
culture — values driven, open and transparent, striving 1o be better - together. This in turn helps to advance the Group's purpose
of building for a better society.

Principle 2 - Board Composition

The board is made up of the Executive Management Team (EMT) which is fed by UK President and CEO, Gregor Craig,
supporied by six Executive Vice Presidents, The board comprises a balance of skills, backgrounds, experience and knowledge
with ¢ech individnal making a valuable conteibution. The average tenure of the board is six years.

The EMT is responsible for setting the strategic direction, values, ethics and purpose across the Group.

The size of the board is considered sufficient for the strategic needs and challenges faced by the organisation and enables
effective decision making. The board is cvaluated on a regular basis by its ultimate parent company Skanska AR.

Principle 3 — Directors’ Respongibilities
Accountability

Each board member has a clear understanding of their responsibility and accountability. The corporate governance framework
cnsurces that Skanska is managed sustainably, responsibly and officiently on behalf of all stakeholders. The purpose of corporale
govemance is also to ensure oversight of the Group by the EMT and management. By having a clearly defined govemance
styucture as well as proper policies and procedures, the board can ensure 1hat management and employees arc focused on
developing the business and thereby pencrating sharcholder value and having a positive impact on society.

The board usually meets twice a menth as an executive team and additionally as required.
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The EMT delegates authority for day-to-day management of the Group to the Senior Management Team (SMT), which it has
oversight of, made up of individuals with the appropriate knowledge, qualifications and industry experience to carry out their
roles. The SMT comprises of members wha arc responsible for specific operations and functions to enable effective and
¢fficient decision making. The Group has a delegation of authority policy which clearly deails what decisions can be delegated
and to whom, including any financial limits. In some instances, Skanska HQ approval is also required above the EMT levels
of autherity.

Integrity of information

The EMT receives regular and tinwly information on all key aspects of the business including Sustainability, health and safety,
opportunities, risks, financial performance, strategy, operations, order bookings and other key performance indicators.

Information is reported from the Group’s operational, commercial and accounting systems. The employees involved are
appropriately qualified to cnsure the integrity of this information and ere provided with the necessary training to keep up Lo
date with any regulatory changes. Financial controls are regularly and routinely reviewed by the ultimate parent company’s
internal audit function,

Principle 4 —~ Opportunity and Risk

The EMT aims to promote the long-term sustainable success of the Group by identifying oppertunitics 10 create and preserve
value and establishing oversight for the identification and mitigation of risks.

Opportunity

For our construction epertions, several factors have a significant bearing on the eventual outcome of the project, including -
type and size, whete it is located, how the contract and delivery approach are structured and the relationship with the customer.
The Group has procedures and tools to manage risk and 10 deliver the Group’s business plan. This platform provides a struc-
tured and cfficicnt means of maximising profitability and achieving the business plan. It builds on the Group’s fundamentals
of focusing on core project types and the understanding of its customers and markets.

As part of our Laser Focus Plan, the goal is that every project must hit or beat tender margin, delivering an operating marpin
of 3% or greater. There are five work streams which have been prioritised as they will have mast impact on improving our
financial performance: the right people; design control; understanding and applying the deal; quality; forecasting and reporting.

We only bid on projects in areas which we have a proven track record of success and which delivers a 3% or greater operating
margin. In erder to identify these projects, we continuously monitor sectors we currently operste in from both a {inancial and
performance perspective whilst also asscssing the potential future opportunities. From time to time this evaluation prowocol is
also extended to newly-emerging sectors. Combining these etements together has given us a good understanding of the projects
we should bid for. It is not just, however, about what we do, but also how we do it. To make the Laser Focus Plan & success
we aim to: base our decisions on fact and realism; scrutinise effectively; learn from success and failure; address
underperformance; and do what we say we will do.

As part of this, the 'Quality of Scrutiny’ programme was introduced, an initiative undertzken by the Group to further enhance
our abilities in scrutinising and managing projects, In order 10 improve our performance and achieve a high leve! of operational
stability, we scrutinise and revisit continuously how we work with the estimating, planning, project execution, bid selectian,
risk assessment, ndministrative and support functions.

Risk

The way in which risk management is dealt with across the Group is set out in the Skanska Group Enterprise Risk Management
Information Palicy. The enterprise risks arc clussified in four categories: strategic; operational; financial; and regulatory. The
Groop’s approach to risk is govemned by Skansks AB, the ultimate parent company, who bave identified the material risks in
its operations that may, if not managed correctly, lead to errors in financial reporting and/or have an impact on the Campany's
performance results. Skanska AB's Group Leadership Team and its core functions are responsible for managing general risks
relating to strategy, macrocconomics and regulatory frameworks, while the main tasks relating {o operational risks and
opportunitics are carried oul at the local level within its individual business urits

The UK is required to carry out a business-wide enterprise risk assessment every two yvars, with the assessment being formally
monitored by the ultimate parent in the interim year. This enables the board to monitor and assess risks at a locul level and
consider whether these are in line with the ultimate parent company’s assessed risks st a global level. The last review was
cartied out during 2021 and & new process of reviewing and, if necessary, updating risks on 2 quarterly basis was adopted. The
principal risks for the Group are set out within the Strategic Report (page 2).
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Responsibilities

The EMT has established an internal control framework with clearly defined roles and responsihiiities for those involved. The
Skanskas UK policies, procedures and guidelines provide the basic rules and instructions to provide a clear structure for the
business opcrations and they represent curent best practice.

Principle § .- Remuneration

At Skanska, a high-performance culture supported by appropriate rernuneration and an award-winning employec development
programme i5 critical to the delivery of individual and business objectives. This eulture is driven by the alignment of clear and
challenging responsibilities and ensuring that employees arc aware of how their work impacts the Group.

Skanska stands by the principle of “equal pay for equal work”, Accordingly, decisions relating 1o remuneration are never
influcaced by discriminatory factors. Furthermore, Skansks adopts the Grandparent Principle for any remuneration decisions.
To ensure fgjr and objcctive remuncration, spproval is required from the line manager and the line manager’s manager,

The remuneration of the CEQ is approved by the Skanska AB compensation committee, and external benchrnarks are used in
the setling of this. Remuneration of board members is approved by the CEQ of Skanska AB in line with the requirements of
the Skanska AB Compensation Commnitice.

The annual bonus plan for the CEQ and other board members is based on two factors: profitability; and perfonmance against
a small number of stratcgic mensures, Targets for both areas are set annually. The annual strategic measures are aligned with
the three areas of the “Profit with Purpose” initiative — Great Peaple, Operational Excellence, and Market Making.

Principle 6 — Stakeholder Relationships and Enpagement

The EMT is clear that good govemance and effective communication are critical to the Group's success. These factors enable
us to deliver our purpose within our communities, tnd to proteet the Group's brand, reputation and relationships with our
stakeholders and ultimale parent, Skanska AB.

Our Communities

The Group is committed to providing a sustainable fisture for its people, customers and communities, The Group's work makes
a clear contribulion to society and the coyironment. We are commitied 10 supporting the commuutities in which we operate,
and through pur structured approach to community investment we provide our time, skills and gifts in kind to leave a positive
legacy wherever we work. Our focus is on strengthening local econornics and championing education in aur arcas of expertise.
We belicve this is where we can have the greatest influence, and it directly supports our purpose to build for a beticr society.

Our projects may last for several years in construction and are designed to last for many years afler that. We are comunitted to
maintaining and improving the environment an our sites and in surrounding areas. We have a tcam of more than 70
environmenial professionals who provide advice and support to cur business and projects. This inciudes delivering on [cgal
compliance, helping our customers to meet their own green ambitions and delivering environmental management that goes
above and beyond statutory requirements, including our plan to aperdte with net-zero carbon emissians by 2045.

Stakehalder Relationships and Engagement

The EMT promotes accountability and transparency wilh its intermal and external stakeholders. An open and ongoing dialogue
with stakehplders is a key component in day-to-day operations and long-termn planning. This provides important insights
regarding their needs, expeclations and challenges.

The EMT tontinaes to seek 1o align the Group’s stralegic dircetion with its purpose to build for a betier socicty as well as
Skanska's long-term sustainability goals of being a responsible business lesder in health and safety, ethics, green, inclusion
and diversity and community investment, focussing on scaling up climate solutions, and developing all our prajects to ensure
n high level of resilicnce. The EMT are the primary communicators between the Group and its ultimate parent campany.

One of the Group’s core values is Commit to Customers. By better understanding our customers® needs, we aim lo provide
innovative and industry-leading solutions, Relationships with our customers are most productive when we are involved in
project planning at an early stage. This allews us to estgblish and work together towards common aims and provides the best
environment for us to add value for them and for their stakehalders. We work on a variety of contracts including those in joint
ventures, on frameworks and in partnerships, depending on the project requirements and the customer. The EMT has set the
foundations for an initiative to become better engaged and connected with customers. This includes “Customer Insights and
Measuremeant” which is a structured customer satisfaction measurement programune using Nel Promoter Score.

During the year the EMT receives updates on key customers including any current or potential issues. Each member of EMT
will meel regularly with customers as being visible, open and collaborative is key lo our success. Whether it is sharing best
practice, discussing success on a project or resolving challenges, the success of this cngagement cannot be underestimated.
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Each member is also a direct contributor 10 professional bodies and associations that shape and give thought leadership to our
industry. This interaction aims to keep the Group at the forefront of innovation, forward-thinking debate and collaboration
with all stakeholders. The impact of this engagement can be seen from policy change through to challenging the mindsets
about mental health within the industry.

The Group works closely wilh our supply chain partmers who are essential 1o our success. The EMT zims o build collaborative
relatianshigs to develap solutions that wilt drive down costs, manage risk and improve sustainability standards. The EMT have
implemented a structured relationship management and development programme, which includes the 15044001 standard. In
the wider industry, the Group is collaborating with the other main contractors in order to help deliver the UK govemnment's
Construction 2025 strategy targets - 33% inwer costs, 502 faster build wnd 50% fower emissions — as well as to support the
award-winning Supply Chain Susiainability School. The School now has over 70,000 registered uscrs from across the supply
chain who can improve their skills in sustainability competence.

The majority of the Group’s spend is with small- and medium-sized businesses, which are often close to its project sites and
offices - helping to suppont lecal people and the economy. The EMT is committed to applying fair and transparent payment
terms for its supply chain, supporting the natiopal Construction Supply Chain Payment Chaner and Prompt Paymens Code,
which demonstrates its commitment to fair payment. The EMT strongly believes that fair and transparcat on-time payment is
essential to good supply chain partner relationships and the delivery of successful projects. In addition to this, the Group
supports scvernl arcas of its supply chain to undertake research and development.

The Group is committed to managing the wider social, environmental, and economic impacts of its operations which includes
the way it engages and builds relationships with its customers and manages sustainability. The EMT is committed to protecting
the envirpnment and making a positive contribution to a more sustainable world through improving the environmental
performance of all our products and scrvices, and actively working to minimise our impact on climate change. The EMT has
set Skanska UK's aim to be the leading green contractor and we conlinue to make progress against our target 10 operate wilh
net-zern greenhouse gas emissions by 2045, and deliver against our overall environmental business plan,

Investment in people is a priority for the Group, offering employees (including contractors) the opportunity to develop and
learn, either within their current role or in ane of the cross-Skanska schemes to build networks and improve collaboration. The
EMT engages with employees in a number of ways throughout the year including recruitment and en-boarding platforms,
Company-wide conferences, roadshows, development programmes and loeal communication events. During COVID-19 board
and employee engagement was retzined through several chamnels including online meetings, wellbeing surveys and live
Company-wide updates including Q&A sessions with the CEQ.

Over the post few years, the EMT has taken steps to improve emplovee reladons by launching more interactive mectings,
improving financial, commercizl and operational systems, expanding the range of cmployee benefits, encouraging more
flexible working practices and supporting wellbeing initistives. An employee engagement survey, *Your Voice, Our Success’
(YVQOS), is carried out annually to provide every emiployee with the opportunity to give input to improve Skanska and coable
an approach for understanding strengths and development areas. The EMT treats the results of the YVOS survey as an
important indicator of the workforce’s confidence in the Group's steategic direction. Specific feedback is requested on how
employees believe the EMT are performing and whether they are trustworthy and capable at leading the Business. Once again,
the results of this survey in 2021 demonstrated a high leve! of trust and belief in the EMT.

Skanska’s Code of Conduct connects all parts of the Group with Skangka’s values, strengthening the business. The Code of
Conduct defines how all Skanska employees should work and interact with cach other, customers and other stakeholders, New
employces are required to complete Code of Conduct training on or before their first day at Skanska, with a mandatory refresher
course for all employces 8l two-yesr intervals, Skanska employees are cxpected to ke action, withowt fear of recourse, if they
believe that there has been a serious breach to the Code, for example, fraud, theft, bullying or health & safety violations. A
number of methods are available for any employee to raise any potential concerns, including anonymously via Skanska's Code
of Conduct hotline. Reports are investigated by the Ethics Committee and summaries are published internally for all employees
to read.

The Group communicates regularly with the Trustees of its various defined benefit pension schemes, who are independent of
the Group. The Beard of Trustees comprises individuzls nominated by the pension scheme members and by the Group, These
relationships are key to ensuring that the decisions made by both the Group and the scheme reflect the interest of all

stakcholders.

The Company s website (www.skanska,co.uk), intranct and social media channels provide extensive and up-to-date news on
recent developments.
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Principal decision-making

The Group recognises 1be importance of cngaging with stakcholders to help inform strategy and EMT decision-making,
Relevant stakeholder inlcrests, including those of employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, are taken into

account by the EMT when decisions are made. In making these decisions, the EMT considers the outcomes of rclevant
stakeholder engagement as well as the need to maintain repulation and sharcholder value,

On behalf of the board:

C K K Gangotra - Dircctor

Date:  15th July 2022
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The Directors present their report with the fnancial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
3tst December 2021.

This Directars’ report should be read in conjunction with the Group Strategic Report, which shall be deemed to form part of
this Directors’ Report to the extent required by applicable law and regulations.

Principat activities

The principal activity of the Group in the year under review was that of a construction services business with core activities in
construction, civil engineering, utilities, piling and ground engineering, design, mechanical and ¢lectrical works and hard and
soft facilitics mantagement, Qurbusiness model is to integrate our core disciplines to deliver project solutions across our chosen
market sectors,

Dividends

An interim dividend in-specie of £16.1 million {0.4878p per share) in respect of the year ended 3]st December 2021 was
distributed to the ordinary shareholder on 26th November 2021, This in turh provided distributable reserves for dividend
payments from the Company’s immediate UK. parent, Skanska Construction Holdings UK Limited, to Skanska Eurape AB for
the financial year cnded 31st Deccmber 202].

Future developments

The Group will continue to {ocus on its new business plan in the year which will set out our direction for the next several years
as well as continuing to focus on mitigation plans in respect of Brexit and the Ukraine crisis.

Directars
The Directors who have held office during the period from st January 2021 ro the date of this report are:

H I Francis

G L Craig

CK K Gangoma

T P Fautkner

M G Neezon

K M Dowding

8 Paul (Appointed 6th April 2021)

Directors’ interests and transactions with Directors

None of the Directors as at 315t December 2021 had any interests required to be disclosed under Scction 182 Companies Act
2006, There were no changes in the Directors' interests between 315t December 2021 and the date of approviog this report.
No Director during the yesr had an interest in any contract significant to the Group's business.

Statement of corporete governance arrangements

From the [st January 2018, under The Companies (Miscellancons Reporting) Regulations 2018, the UK Group has applied
the Wales Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies {published by the Financial Reporting Council
(‘FRC’) in Decernber 2618 and aveilable on the FRC website). They embrace the Group's existing gavemsnce framework,
which already contained many of the principles to satisfy the new legisiative requircments.

The Corporate Governance Report approved by the Board is provided on pages 13 to 18.

Policy on payment of creditors

The Company and it subsidiary undertakings are responsible for agreeing the terms and conditions under which business
transactions with their suppliers are conducted. It is Company policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with

these terms, provided that the supplier is also complying with all relevant terms and conditions. The Group's trade creditors at
31st December 2021 represented 6.9 days’ purchases (2020: 5.7 days).
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Research and Develapment

Innovation is impaortant o enable Skanska to retaln a leading market position, ensbling the Group o provide the solutions
needed by customers, now and well into the future. Through innovation, Skanska identifies, develops and apply new technical
produicts, services, and processes, increasingly working with external partners. This focus — part of the 2024 busipess plan's
Digital productivity aspect — generates enhanced value for Skanska’s sharcholders and customers. Various intemna networks
and commumications platforms facilitate sharing knowledge across the Group,

Research and development priority areas include Sustainability - including green and herlth and safety — and digitatisation,
Gaoing concern

The Company's Directors have considered the preparation of these financial statements under the 'going concern’ basis. They
have considered:

- The quality, remaining duration and volume of construction contracts held;

- The liquidity levels maintained by the business;

- The principal risks and uncertaintics cutlined in the Group Strategic Report;

- The future forecasts for the Group.

In addition, we continue to assess the continuing impact of Brexit and the emerging impact of the Ukraine crisis on the business
through additional stress testing of the Group's budgets and forecasts. The stress 1esting has considered the Group's operational
performance and cash flow based on 2 number of scenarios in accordance with the impacts on the wider economy, our clients
markets and supply chain, looking at both the short to medium-term. The outcome of which shows that the Group is expected
to maintain positive cash flows giving the Group the ability to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

After considering the above points and making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the period from the date of signing these {inancial statements to
315t December 2023, Accordingly, they deem it appropriate to continue o prepare these financial stalements on the going
concern basis.

Employment policies

The Directors recognise that employees are fundumental to the Group’s success and are cornmilted to the involvement and
development of employces at all levels. The Company is cormmitted to a policy of providing cqual opporiunities for all,
regardless of race, religion, sex or disability. The Company is committed to training and management development, so a5 o
ensure a supply of trained and skilled employees.

To reflect society at large, the areas in which the Company works, and its customer profile, the Company needs to increase the
diversity of its workforce in terms of educational and occupational background, gender and cthnicity, Therefore, the Company
is broadening ils recruitmen( base by avaching greater importance to these issues. Examples of our approach in this area
include the establishment of 8 rumber of empleyee networks to give a greater voice to under-represented Groups, a mixed pair
mentoring programme, and a Returaers programme which provides a supportive bridge back into employment for people who
have been out of the work arena for reasons such as caring responsibilities or raising a family.

The Company places considerable value on the involvemnent of its employces and has continued its previous practice of keeping
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various {actors affecting the performance of the Company
and the Skanska Group. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings and in-house publications,

The Directors cnsure that employees or their representatives are consulied regularty on a wide range of matters affecting their
current and future interests.

Environment

The Cotmpany and its subsidiary undenakings are required to pursue policies that comply with the relevant legislation and
standards applicable lo their particular industries.

The Group's Sireamlined Energy and Carbon Reperting can be found within the Strategic Report on page 7.

Disabled employces

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fislly considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the appliceat
concerned. Tn the event of members of stafT becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the

Group continues and that appropriate training is ammanged. [ is the policy of the Group that the training, career development
and promotion of disabled persans should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employees.
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Pensions

On an 1AS 19 basis, the Group's defined benefil pension schemes had a surplus of £54.0 miltion at 31st December 2021 (2020:
deficit of £31.3 million}.

Total contributions paid into the main Skanska Pension Fund by the Group was £15.0 million (2020: £14.5 million).
Directors’ indemnity provisions

In accordance with the Companies (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004, as at the date of this report,
the articles of association contained provisions for third-party qualifying indemnities where the Group has agreed to indemnify
the Direclors in respect of losses arising oul of, or in connection with, the execution of their duties and responsibilitics as
Directors of the Company, and this was in force throughout the financial year ended 315t Decembeor 2021,

Post balgnce sheet events

There have been no post balance shect cvents thal require disclosure or adjustment in these financial statements,

Disclosure of information to auditor

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is so relevant audit information,
being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which the auditor is unaware. Having made
enquiries of fellow Directors and the Group's auditor, cach Director has taken all the steps that he/she is obliged to take as a

Director in order to make himselfherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the sudilor is aware of’
that infacmation.

Audltors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors, Emst & Young LLP, will be proposed for re-
appointment at the following Annual Genzral Meeting.

On behalf of the board:

C K K Gangotra - Ditector

Date: 15th July 2022
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the financial stalements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under Company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing thosc financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policics in accordance with 1AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors" and then apply them consistemly;

- statc whether applicable IFRS, in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, have been followed,
subject to any material departures, disclosed and explained in the financial statcmens;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statcrnents on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate lo presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business,

The Dircctors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company
and the Group's transaclions and disclose with reasonable acouracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensurc that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and heace for taking reasonsble steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

T
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of Skanska UK Pl

Opinfon

We have audited the financial statements of Skanska UK Plc (*the parent company”) and its subsidinrics (the 'group®) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 which comiprise the Group Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Parcnt campany Balance
Sheet, Group and Parent company statement of cash flows, the Group stutement of comprehensive income, the Group and
Parent statcment of changes in equity and the related notes i to 35, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted International
Accounting Standards and as regards the parent company financial staiements, as applicd in accordance with section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006.

In our opmion:

. ihe financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
December 2021 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

+  the group financial statcments have been properly prepared in accordunce with UK sdopted International
Accounting Standards;

*  the parent campany financial statements have been property prepared in accardance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and applicable law, Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsihbilitics (or the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in sccordance with the ethical requiremenis that are elevamt
1o our audit of the [inancial statemenis in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard , and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate w provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In suditing the linancial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group and parent
company s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

«  We assessed the risk around going concern in planning our audit and again at the year-cnd phasc;

* We confinmed our understanding of the process followed by management to prepare the Group’s going concem
agsessment, including assessing the inflation and supply chain impact of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and the
conflict in Ukraing;

*  We obtained management’s going concem assessment, including the cash flow forecast for the going concem period
to 31 Decemnber 2023;

*  Weidentified and challenged the key assumptions underlying management’s forecasts and models by checking to
rorroborative evidence, We also searched for contrary evidence to challenge the assumptions;

*  We performed our own sensitivity analysis on Lhe forecast in addition to sensitivity analysis performed by
manegement;

»  We performed reverse stress testing on the forecast prepared by management;

e We checked the logic and aritheetical accuracy of the models developed by management;

»  We assessed the accuracy of management forecasting by comparing forecasts made in prior periods to actual
outcomes,

»  We obtained a copy of the Group's order bookings and performed an assessment over the secured revenue; and

#  We assessed the accuracy and appropriaieness of management’s disclosure in the Director’s Report and the Going
Concern basis of preparation note.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material unceriaisties relating to cvents or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for & period from when the financial statements are authorised for issue to 31 December 2023,

Our responsibililies and the responsibilitics of the directors with respect 1o going concem are described in the relevant seclions

of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statetnent is not a guarantee as to the
group's abilily lo conlinue as a going concern.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
audHor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual repoert.

Qur opinion on the {inancial statements does not cover the other informalion and, except lo the cxtent otherwise explicitiy
stated in this repert, we do not express any form of assurance canclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude thal there is a material misstaiement of the other infarmation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the infarmation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
s the strategic report and directors' repart have been prepared in accordance with spplicable legal requircments.

Matters on whick we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
coursc of the audit, we have not identified maicrial misstatements in the strategic repart or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion:
«  adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
»  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting recards and returns; or
»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
»  wc have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on X, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are frec from material misstatemnent,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financizl statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of nccounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain rcasonable assurance aboul whother the financial statements as a whaole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc un auditor’s report that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will afways detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or esror and are considered matedat if, individually
or in the agpregate, they couid reasonably be expected to influcnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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Explanation as fo what extent the audit wos considered capable of detecting irvegularities, incliding fraud

iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with [aws and regulations, We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or inteational misrepresentations, or through colfusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting imregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

*  Wc obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that the most significan: are the Companies Act 2006, Rribery Act 2010, Constructiuu {Design and
Manggement) Regulations 2015 and ke relevant tax regulations in the United Kingdom,

*  We understood how Skanska UK Ple is complying with those frameworks through inquiry with management, and
by identifying the Group s policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We corroborated
our inquiries through our review of board minutes, compliance issues reported through a whistleblowing hotline and
correspondence received from regulatory bodies.

*  Weassessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud
might occur through inguiry with management (including legal) and those charged with governance to undersland
where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud. As part of this we understood the performance targets of
management. We also considered the risk of management override.

»  Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and
reguiations, Our procedures involved testing manual journal eniries and other journals identified by specific risk
criteria, review of beard minutes and any legal correspondence, inquitics with senior mapagement and where
applicable, those charged with governance and obtaining written representations [rom the directors of the company.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at https://www.[rc.org.uk/auditorseesponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companics
Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we arc required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept of
assume responsibility to anyone other than the compeny and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, Tor this
reporl, or for the opinions we have formed.

e
z Led

David Wilsan {Scniot statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Loudon

1 5th July 2022
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Skanska UK Pl (Registered number: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Revenue

Cast of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Administrative expenses

Operating profil
finance costs

Finarnce income

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations
Profit after tax for the year [rom disconlinued operations
Profit for the year

Profit attributable 10:
Owmers of the parent

Notes

2021 2020
£:000 £7000
1,122,698 1,122,278
(1,005,754) (1,042,310)
116,944 79,968
302 4,018
(83,538) (71,810)
33,708 12,176
(2,022) (2,476)
3 060 3,333
34,746 13,033
(10,760) (855)
23,986 12,178
31,552 8,181
55,538 20,359
55,538 20,359

The notes on pages 34 10 73 form pari of these financial statements
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Skansksz UK Plc (Registered numher: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

[tems that may not be reclagsified subsequently to profit or loss:
Nel actuarial gzin/(loss) on pension scheme

Employees share scheme

Current tax credit relating to iters of other compreheusive Income
Deferred tax charge relating to items of other comprehensive Income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differgnce

Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income atteibwtable to:
Owners of the parent

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
55,538 20,359
72,007 (5,592)
2,490 2,173
3,388 2,338
(21416) {1,276)
56,469 (2,357)
(1,402) 1,077
(1.402) 1,077

55,067 {1,280)
110,605 19,079
110,605 19,079

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form pant of these financial statements
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784751)

Consolidated Statement of Finsncial Position
For The Year Ended 3ist December 2021

2021 2020
Noles £'000 £°000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 9,634 6,830
Property, plant and equipment 13 19,989 20,574
Ripht-of-use assets 14 44 661 45,526
fnvestments 15 3,937 3,937
Pension asset 28 53,981 -
Deferred tax 27 9,293 16,018
141,495 92,886
Current assels
Inventories 16 4,573 4,667
Trode and other receivables L7 165,738 145,691
Contract assets 18 83,534 85433
Cash and cash equivalents (9 519,650 422385
773,495 658,176
Assets held for sale 10 - 54,725
773,495 712,901
Total Assets 914,990 805,787
Equity
Shareholder's equity
Challed up share capital 20 165,000 165,000
Retained earnings 21 197,682 103,177
Tstal equity 362,682 268,177
Liabilities
Non-current llabilities
Lease liahilities 24 50,434 53,069
Pension liability 28 - 31,331
Deferred tax 27 13,496 2,556
Provisions 26 98,808 82,826
162,738 169,782
Cuarrent labilities
Trade and other payables 22 285,188 218,468
Contract liabililics 23 85,354 88,065
Tax payable 8,165 199
Lease liabilities 24 10,862 10,278
IB8,570 317010
Liabilitics directly associated with the assets held for sale 10 - 50,818
389.570 367,828
Total liabilities 552,308 537,610
‘Tatal equity and liabllities 914,990 805,787

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15th July 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

C K K Gangotra - Director

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form part of these financial statenenis
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Assels

Noa-~current ussets
Intangible assels

Praperty, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investments

Pension asset

Deferred tax

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Contract asscts

Tax receivable

Cash and cash cquivalents

Assels held for sale

Taotal Assets

Equity
Sharehalder’s equity
Called up share capital
Retained carnings

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liahitjties
Lense linbilities
Pension liability
Deferred tax

Current lizbilitics
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilitics

Lease liabilities

Bank overdrafi

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for sale

Tuotal liabilities

Toatal equity and ligbilities

Notes

12

14
15
18
27

17
18

24
28
27

23
24

2021 2020
£'000 £000
9,634 6,830
6,457 6,289
43,380 41,953
48,898 49238
54,874 .
2,576 8,346
165,819 112,656
156,450 246,449
32,748 27211
14,176 4,182
- 2,839
306,454 280,681
- 15.954
306.454 296,635
472,273 409,291
165,000 165,000
82,604 16,170
247,604 181,170
48,395 48,690
. 28,115
13,718 -
62,113 76,805
138,594 127,621
- 1,286
7,359 6,174
16,603 -
162,556 133,081
. 16,235
162,556 151,316
274,669 228,121
472,273 409,29

The Dircetors have isken the exemption provided by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not presented a profit
and loss account {or the Company. The profit for the year ol the Company was £27 406,000 (2020: £35,213,000)

The financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors on [5th July 2022 end were signed on its bebalf by:

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form part of these financial statements
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Consotidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Ycar Ended 31st December 2021

Balance at 1st Jannary 2020

Profit far the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Balance as at 31st December 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid

Balance as at 31st December 2021

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form purt of these fmancial statements

jo

Called up

share Retained Total
capital earningy equity
£000 £7000 £°000
165,000 119,098 284,098
- 20,359 20,359

- (1,280) {1,280)

- 19,479 14,076

- (35,000) (35,000)
165,000 103,177 268,177
- 55,538 55,538

- 55.067 57,067

- (14,605 110,605

- (16,100} {16,100}
165,000 197,682 362,682




Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31st Decernber 2021

Balance at Ist January 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Balance as at 31st December 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends paid

Balance us ut 31st December 2021

Called up
share Retained Total equity
capital earnings £000
£'000 £'000

165,000 19,368 184,368
- 35,213 35213

- Galny @A)
- 31,802 31,802
- (35,000) (35,000)
165,000 16,170 181,170
27,406 27406
- 55,128 55,128
- 82,534 82,534
{16,100) {16,100)
165,000 82,604 247,604

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form part of these finaneial statements
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Cash flows from opecating activities
Cash generated from operations
Tax {paid)/received

Net cash from opcraling activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assels
Purchase of fangible fixed assets

Sale of tangible fixed assets

Sale of investments

Sale of business operations

[nterest received

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid

Principal paid on lease liabilities

Net cash from financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents st cnd of year

2021 2020

Notes £1000 £'000
32 85,489 6,323
(8,872) 3,786

76,617 10,109

(2,804) (5,548)

(3.471) (4,483)

372 118

- 1,721

10 53,722 -
2,876 2,931

50,805 {5,261)

(16,100) {35,000)

24 (14,147) (21,173
(30,247) (56,173)

07,265 (51,323%)

422,385 473,710

519,650 422 385

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form part of these financial statements
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Company Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations 32
Tax (paid)/received

Net cash used in operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received

Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Inlerest received

Net cash from investing activities

Cash Nows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Principal paid on lease liabilities 24
Net cash from financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2021 2020

£1000 £'000
(24,167) {24,251)
(8,872) 3,786
{33,039 {20,465)
40,000 -
(2.804) (4.701)
{1,559) {150)
4,308 3,615
39,945 (1,236)
(16,100 (35,000)
(10,248) {14.570)
(26,348) (49.570)
(19,442 (71,271)
2,839 74,110
{16,603) 2,839

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form part of these financial statements
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Skanska UK Plic (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

{. Corporate Statutory information

Skanska UK Plc (the ‘Company’) is a public Company, limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
The Cornpany's regisiered number and registered office address can be found on the Company Information page.

The presentation currency of thie linancial statements is the Pound Stedling (£), the functional currency of the Group. All values
are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000), unless otherwise stared.

2. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements bave been preparcd and approved by the Dircclors in confommity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and under the historical cost convention and inelude the results of activities described in the Directors’

report,

The financial statements have heen prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will continue in
operational cxisicnce and meet its liabilities as they fall due, for the period from the date of signing thesc financial statements
ta 315t December 2023.

The Group has net current assets of £383.9 million and nct asscts of £362.7 million. The Group mects its day to day working
capital requirements through an inter-Company UK pooling arrangement and does not have any bank debt or other external
bormowings or facilities.

The Group's financial forccasts, taking into considerarion the current environment, show that the Group is expected 1o maintain
positive cash flows giving the Group (he ability te continue to operate for the foresecable future. The Group has been able to
utilise certain government stimulus initiatives and upon several productivity analyses preformed, the Directors do not
anticipale requesting any suppori from its ultimate pareni, Skanska AB.

In view of the circumstances referred to above, the Directors are satisfied that sufficient fAinancial resources will be geacrated
by the Group for the foresecable future. Accordingly, the Directors of the Group believe that it is appropriate to adopt the
going conoern basis in preparing the financial statements.

However, should sufficient positive cash flow not be available, the going concern basis would be invalid and adjustments
would have to be made lo provide for any further liabilities which might arisc and o reclassify fixed assets and long-term
liabilities as current assets and liabilitics.

The Company bas inken advaniage of the exemption under section 408 of the Companivs Act 2006 not 1o prepare a profit and
loss account as the Company's results are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss shown on page 26.

Basis of consolidation

The consalidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ({ogether the
*Group’) as at 31st December 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to vanable retums from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through ity power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group contrels an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

= Powcr over the investee (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns fram its involvement with the investee
s  The ability 1o use its power over the investee to affect its retumns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To suppeornt this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group copsiders atl relevan facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

«  The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee

«  Rights arising from other contractual ammangements
e The Group's veting rights and potential voting rights
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Finsncial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2.  Accounfing policies - continued

‘The Group re-asscsses whether or not it contrels an inveslee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to ong
or more of the three elements of control. Consclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, Habilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements fiom the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are atributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this resulis in the nen-vontrolling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjusuments
erc made to the financial siatements of subsidiaries to bring their sccounting poticies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group arc climinated in ful! on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity ransaction.

If the Group loses contro over a subsidiary, il derecognises the related asscts {including gocdwill), liabilities, non-controlling
interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Associated undertakings and joint arrangements

A joint arrangement exists where the co-owners have rghts (o the assets of the arranpement and obligations for the liabilities
of the arrangement. An arrangement that is not structured through the foanation of a separate Company is a joind operation.
Contracting projects performed in cooperation with owtside contracting companies, with joint and several liability, are reported
by the Group as joint aperations. If the arangement is & separate Company but the majority of the Company's production is
acquired by the co-owners, then the arrangement is often considered 1o be a joint operation. If, on the other hand, the co-
owners of the arrangement only have rights to the net asscts of the arrangement, it is a joint venture. Classification of & joint
arrangement requires consideration of its legal form, the terms agreed by the parties in lhe contraciual arrangement and other
circumstances,

An associated undertaking is an entity over which the Group holds & participating interest on a long-term basis and exercises
significant influence. Intercsts in associated undertakings are included in the consolidaled financial statements using the equity
accounting method.

The Group has entered into & number of joint operations with different partners for the purposes of undertaking specific

contracts, Interests in joinl operations are sccounted for by recognising the Group's share of income and cxpenses and assels
and liabilities measured according to the terms of the arrangements,

Invesiment in subsidiaries

The Group holds investments in subsidiaries at cost less any applicable provision for impairment.
Early adaption of new or revised IFRS and interpretations

There has been no carly adoption of new or revised IFRS or interpretations.

New stundards and interpretations

The following rew stendards, amendments and inlerpretations are effective for the first time for periods beginning on or after
Ist January 2022 but have not had a material cffect on the Group and so have not been discussed in detail in the notes to the

financial statemenls:

»  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — IBOR “phase 2' (Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16} and
s Amendments to IFRS 4 — increase in temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9.
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statcments
For The Year Ended 315t December 2021

1. Accounting policics - continued

New standards, interpretations and smendments not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that are
effective in fiture accounting periods that the Group has decided not to adom early. The most significant of these are as
follows:

COVID-19 related rent concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16)';

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to [AS 37},

Property, Plant and Equipment: Praceeds before Intended Use (Amendments (o [AS 16);

Annual Improvements to IFRS Siandards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41)%;
References 1o Conceptual Framework (Amendments to [FRS 3);

Changes to accounting estimates and accounting polices (Amendments to JAS Tand [AS 8)% and

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction {Amendment to IAS 12)%,

> 2 = & 2 » »

! Effective for the period beginning [st fanuary 2022
*Effeetive for the period beginning §st January 2023

In fanuary 2020, the IASB issucd amendments to IAS {, which clarify die criteria used (o deterinine whether liabilities are
classified as current or hon-current. These amendments clarify that current or nen-gusrent ¢lassification is based on whether
an entity has a right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the lizbility for at least twelve months after the
repotting period. The amendmenis also clarify that ‘scttlornont’ includes the transfor of cash, goods, services, or cquity
insttuments unless the obligation 1w trangfer equity instruments arises fiom a conversion feature classified as an equity
instrument separately from the liability component of & compound financial instrument. The effeclive date of this amendment
has becn deferred to annual reporting periods beginning on or afier st January 2024

Skanska UK Plc is currently assessing the impact of these amendments to accounting standards. The Group daes not expect
any ather standards issued by the [ASE, but not yet effective, to have a material impact on the Group.

Revenue

Revenue represents the sales value of work dene on construction contracts and services activitics in the period and excludes
VAT. Profit and revenuc on construction contracts is calculated in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

When an outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, the Campany’s preferred method of revenue is the
output methed in which revenue is recognised based on the units of work performed and the ptice allocated thereto, This
method is apptied provided that the progress of the work performed can be measured based on the contract and during the
contract’s performance. Under this output method the units of work completed under each contract are measured monthiy and
the corresponding output is recognised as revenue. Where jt is not practicable to apply this *units of preduction” cutput method,
the “percentage of completion’ tnpat method is used instead. Under this input methed costs are recognised as incurred and
revenuc is recognised based on the praportion of total costs at the reporting date to the estimated total costs of the contract.

Variations in contract wark, claims and incentive payments are included to the exient that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receigt is considered highly probable i.e. agreed with the customer. Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated refiably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is highly probable they
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs wifl exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately as a provision for forecast losses.

Contract Assets and Cantract Liabilitles

Unlike the method used to recognise contmact revenue, the amounts billed to the cusiomer are based on the monthly
achizvement of progress towards our performance obligation in the contract and on acknowledgement thereof by the customer,
which takes the form of a contractual document call a *certificate of completion’ or *werk order”. Thus, the amounts recognised
as revenue for a given year do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or cenified by the customer. In the case of
contracts in which goods and services transferred \o the customer exceed the related amount billed or centified, the difference
is recognised as a contract assel, Whereas in contracts in which the goods or services transferred are fower than the amount
billed 1o or certified by the customer, the differeace is recognised as a contrect liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 315t December 2021

2.  Accounting policies - continued

Government Grants

The grants are recognised in other income within profit or lose when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. The prants are recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensale, are expensed,

Profit from disposal of investments
Profit on disposal of the Company’s investiments is recognised when all three of the following criteria are met:

- coutracts are exchanged prior to the year-end,

- conditions of the sale that need to be satisfled before legal completion are satisfied before the year-end. Any
conditions not satisfied before the year-end must be administrative in nature only; and

- full consideration from the sale must be received shortly afier the year-end.

Pre-cantract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred until it is virtually certain thar a contract will be awarded, from which time further
pre-contract costs are recognised as an asset and charged as an expense aver he period of the contract. Amounts recovered in
respect of pre-contract costs that have been written-off are deferred and amortised over the life of the contract. When financial
close is achieved on Private Finance Initiative (PFI) contracts and pre-cotitract costs are recovered, (hose cosls not previously
capitalised are credited to the profit or loss.

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability 1o pay a dividend when the distribution is avthorised, and the distribution is no longer at
the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws of Euroland, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
sharcholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-current sssets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classilies non-current assets and disposal Groups us held for sale if their carrying amouals will be recovered
principally through » sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal Groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal Group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The eriteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal
Group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn, Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one yeor from the date of the classification.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amontised once classified as held for salc.

Assets and liabilities classified a5 held for sale arc presented separately as current ilems in the statement of finincial position.

A disposal Group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an emtity that cither has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and:

+  Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;
e Ispar of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of 2 separate major line of business or peographical area of operations; or
* Is asubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resalc.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and arc presented as a separate column in the
staternent of profit or loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Wote 10. All other notes to the financial statements comprise amounts for continuing
operations, tnless indicated otherwise,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemcnts
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2. Accounting policies - continued
Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, representing the difference between the fair value of purchase consideration
and the fair value of net assets acquired, is capitalised in the staternent of financial position. Goedwill is reviewed for
impairrnent at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss within admigisirative expenses
and is not subsequently reversed. The fair value of net assets in excess of the fair value of purchase consideration is credited
1o the income statement in the year of acquisition.

Impairment losses arc determined on the basis of the recoverable amount of goodwill, which is based exclusively on velue in
use, calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows generated by the asset. The discount factor is the weighted
average cost of capital applicable to the paremt Company. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated for the cash-
generating unit to which it is attributable. A cash-generating unit is the smaflest Group of assets that generates cash flows
which arc independent of other Groups of assets.

Intangible assets acquited scparately are measured on inilial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initia recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumnulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss an
a straight-line basis over 5 years, Intemally pencrated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurrad,

Research and development

Research costs which predominately refate to client technical solutions snd 1T are expenscd as incwrred. Development
expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
{ts intention to complete and its ability and intention to usc or seli the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of resources to complete the assel

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

a 9 & & @9

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an assct, the asset is carricd at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impainment losses. Amortisation of the assel begins when development is complete and the asses
is available for use. Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-linc basis over 7 years. During the period of
development, the asset iy tested for impaitment annually,

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and cquipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises the aggrepate amount paid and the fair vatue of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and incfudes costs

directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is provided on alt propenty, plant, and equipment, other than and, on a straight-line basis over its cxpected useful
life as foliows:

Leasehold improvements 3-30 years
Plant and Equspment 3. {0 years

Frechold land is not depreciated. Provision for permanent diminution in the value of [and is charged to the statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2. Accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments

All financial instruments, including derivatives, are recognised as a financial assct or (inancial {iability in the statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or
sale of a financial asset is recognised in and desceognised from the statement of financial position using trade date accounting.
A finaneial assel is derccognised from the statement of financial position when the contractual nights to cash flows from the
financin) asset expire or when the Group transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or retains
the contractual rights to receive cash flows, but agsumes a contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients.
A financial linbility is derccognised from the statement of financial position only when the contractual obligation is fulfilled,
cancclled or expires.

Presentation of finencial assets is based on the Group's business model and the contractual cash flows of the asset, A financial
asset is measured at amortised cost if the asset is held within the framework of a business model the objective of which is 1o
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, A financial asset is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if the asset is held according to & business model the objective of which can be achicved both by
collecting contractual cagh flows and sclling financial assets, and the cash flows are solcly payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount cutstanding. A financial assct is measured a1 fair value though profit or loss if it is not measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. All financial assets arc measured at amortised cost. The
Group is only entitled to reclassify all relevany financial assets when the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets. Reclassification of financial Habilities is not permitted.

Financial asscts and liabilitics arc initially measured at fair value plus or minus transaction costs upon acquisition ofa financial
asset or financiat liability for a financial asset or {inancial lisbility that is not measured &t fair value through profit or loss,
Trade recejvables that do nol contain a significant financing component are measured upon iritial recognition at their
transaction price {as defined in IFRS 15). After initizl recognition, financial assets are measured at amortised cost. Subsequent
mensurement of financial liabilities is at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

‘The Group applies the impairment reguirement 1o expected credit losses on financial assets and a foss provision {or these is
recognised as 8 deduclion from the asset. On every closing day the loss provision is to be equivalent to an amount reflecting
the expectzed credit losses for the remaining time until maturity if the credit risk has increased sigunificantly since it was initially
recognised. 1 the credit risk has not increased significantly since it was first recognised, the loss provision is to be equivalent
to 12 months of cxpected credit losses. For trade receivables, contractual assets and iease receivables, the loss provision is
always to be at an amount equivalent to the remaining time to maturity. The Group measures expected credit losses taking into
account an objective and probability— weighted amount, the time value of money, reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Offsetting of financial assets and fnancial liabilities occurs when there is a legat right to offset items against each other and
the intention to either seitle these items on & net basis or simultaneously divest the asset and scttie the liability.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the Tower of cost and net realisable value,
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as follows:
- Stocks: Purchase cost on a first-in/first-out basis
- Properties: Cost comprises direct materials and where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, not
including any general administrative overheads, that have been incurred in bringing the property 10 ils present

location and condition, as well as directly attributable borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estitnated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash

Cash in the statement of financial position comprises cash at banks and on hand and with a maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the Consolidated and Company siatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, as
defined above.
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For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2. Actounting policies - continued
Taxatian

Current incotne tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, cxcept tax refaling to items recognised directly
in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profil or loss. Management periodically cvaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions wherc appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used (0 compute the amount are thase that are enacted or substantively cnacted at the
reporiing date in the couniries where the Group operates and generates taxable income,

Defermed taxation is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date
between the tax bases of asscis and liabilities and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes except for lemporary
differences arising on the revaluation of assets and the future remittance of undistributed carnings from subsidiaries. Deferred
tax assely arg recorded only to the extent that they are considered recoverable.

Forelgn currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencics are initially recorded in the entity's functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction, Monctary essets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies are retranstated at the
functional currency rate of exchenge ruling at the balance sheel date. All differences are taken to the profit or loss.

Non-monetary iters that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreipn currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translaled al exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on wanslation for consolidation are recoguised in OCL On disposal of a forcign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is reclassified to profit ar loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operntion and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of asscts
and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as asscts and liabilities of the foreign operation and translawd at the spot
ratc of exchange at the reporting date.

Employec benefit costs

Certain of the Group's employees are members of a Group-wide defined benefit pension plan. The cost of providing benefits
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The charge to the profit ar loss reflects
the cumrent service cost of such obligations. The expected retum on plan assets and the interest cost on scheme liabilities are
included within financial income and expenses in the profit or loss. The retirement benefit deficit recognised in the statement
of finangial position represents the excess of the present value af scheme liabilities over fair valuc of scheme assels.
Differences between the actual and expected returns on assets and experience gains and losses arising on scheme labilities
during the year, together with differences arising {from changes in assumptions, are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the year.

The cosl of defined contribution pension schemes is expensed 1o the profit or loss as incurred,
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a rosull of a past cvent, it is
probable that an outflow of resources cmbodying cconomic benefits will be required to sentle the obligation and a relishle
cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of & provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a scparate asset, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually ceriain. The cxpense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, pravisions arc discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriale, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the grovisien due 1o the passage of
1ime is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial
recognitjon is based on historical expericnce. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.
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2. Accounting policies - continued
Leases

All leascs are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
»  lLeases of low value assets; and
*  Leases with a duration of 12 months or less,

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments duc to the lessor over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case} this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Group's incrementat borrowing rate on commencemient of the lease is used. Variable lease
payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the
initial measurement of the lease Hability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease ternm. Gther
varizble lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:
« amounts expected 10 be payable under any residual value guarantec;
= the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonable certain to assess that
oplion;
*  any penaltics payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of termination
option being exerciscd,

Right of use asscts are initially mcasured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and
increased for:
s lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;
= initial direct costs incurred; and
e the amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractuatly required to dismantie, remove ar restore
the leased assct (typically leaschold dilapidations).

Subsequent to initial measurement leasc liabilities increase as a result of intercst charged at a constant rate on the balance
outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets arc amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, (his is judged to be shorter than the lease
term,

When the Group revises its eslimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessec
eXtension or termination option being excreised), it edjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reffeet the payments to
make over the revised term, which are discounted a1 the sante discount rate that applicd on lease commiencement, The carrying
value of lease liabilitics is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index
is revisced. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use assct, with the revised
carrying amounl being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature of the
modification:

#  if the rencgotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as o separzie lease in
accordance with the above policy;

* in all ather cases where the rencgotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension ta the lease
term, or one or more additionsl asscts being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount;

»  Ifthe renopotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the castying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-usc asset are reduced by the same proportion to refiect the partial of full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss, The lease lisbility is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modificalion date. The right-of.use asset is adjusted by the sume amount.

For contracts that bath convey & right to the Group (o use an identified asset and require services to be provided to the Group

by the lessor, the Group has clected to account for the entirc contract as a lesse, i.c. it does allocale any amount of the
contractual payments 10, and account separately for, any services provided by the supplier as part of the contract.
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2. Accounting policies - continued

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group Icases & number of propertics from which it operates. In some cases, the lease contracts provide far payments (o
increase each yenr by inflation or reset periodically 1o market rental rates. In some property leases the periodic rent is fixed

over the lease term.

The Group also leases cerain items of plant and equipment. Leases of plant, equipment and vehicles comprise only fixed
payments over the lease terms,

The percentages in the table below reflect the curreat proportions of lease payments that arc cither fixed or variable. The
sensitivity reflects the impact on the camying amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets if thore way an uplift of 5% on
the balance sheet date to leasc payments that are variable.

31st December 2021
Payments Lease Fixed Variable

in the year Contracts Payments payments Sensitlvity

£000 Number % % £000

Property leases with payments 4,833 1 29 329
linked to inflation "
Property leases with fixed 3,603 25 Py

paRyments

Leases of plant and equipment 4173 472 25
Vchicle leases 3,958 1,704 24

16,567 2212 71 29 329

The Group somctimes negotiates break clauses in its property leases, On a case-by-case basig, the Group will consider whether
the absence of a break clause would expose the Group lo excessive risk.

At 31st December 2021, the carrying amounts of lease liabilities are not reduced by the amount of payments lthat would be
avoided from exercising break clauses because on both dates it was considercd reasanably certain that the Group would not
exercise jts right to exercise any right to break the Jease. Total lease payments of £1,408,000 are potentially avoidable were
the Group to exercise break clauses at the carliest oppartunity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substanlial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

The interest capitaliscd is the gross interest incurred on the Group's development specific borrowings. Interest is capitalised
from the commencement of the development wark until the date of practical completion.
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1. Accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial stalements in accordance with International Finsncizl Reporting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 requires management to make judgements, estimates and nssuroptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions arc based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the resulis of which form the basis of making the judgements aboul carrying values of asscis and lizbilities that
are nol readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewod on an ongoing basis. Revisions to aceounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the cstimate is revised if the revision affects only that and prier periods, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The key estimates and judgements in drawing up the financial statements are in connection with construction contracts in
progress, claims on construction contracts, the valuation of pension liabilities and investments in subsidiary undertakings
impairment ests and Icase tength and incremental borrowing rate used.

Principal assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit pension liabilities (Note 28) - These assumptions were set
ot the advice of'the schemes’ actuaries having regard to current market conditions, history, and factors specific to the scheme,

Determination of lease term for some lease contracts in which the Group is a lessee - The Group determines the lease term as
the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably
cerain 1o be exercised, or any periods eovered by an option o terminate the lease, if it is reasonably cedain not to be exercised.
The Group has severa lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it 1o exercise cither the remewal or termination. Afler the
commencetrent date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there #s a significant event or change in circumstances that is within
its control and affects its ability to exercise or nol to exercise the option to renew or {o terminale.

Determination of the incremental borrowing rate used 10 measure lease liabilities - The Group cannot readily detenmine the
interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incrememtaj borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease lisbilities. The [BR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an assct of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic cnviranmeni. The [BR therefore
reflects what the Group *would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are availuble. The IBR is
determined on a quarier]y basis, by the Group's ultimate parent entity, Skanska AB. Discount rales used are disclosed in Note
24 of these financial statements.
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4. Revenune
Expected revenuc recognition for remaining performance oblipations

Centrects may run for a period greater than one year. The expected revenue recogaition relating to ongoing or won contracts,
at 31st December 2021 is as follows

2022 2923 2024 2025+ Total
£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
Expected Revenue 1,092 632 439 734 2317
2021 020
£°000 £'000
Construction works 944 {4 954,434
Rendering of services 178,684 167,844
1FRS 15 revenne from contracts with customers 1,122,698 1,122,278

No revenue was derived from exchange of goods or services (2020: £nil). Revenue recognised in the year from amounts that
were included in the contract liability at the beginning of the period equals £88,063,000 (2020: £85,828,000). Revenue
recognised in the year from performanee obligations satisfied in previous years equals £2,700,000 (2020: £5,850,000).

5. Other operating income

2021 020
£'900 £7000
Govemmenl grants 302 4,018

Government granis relale 10 supporting the payroli of the Company’s employees during the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Company had 1o commit 1o spending the assistance on payroll cxpenses and does riot have any unfulfilled obligations relating
to this program.
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6. Employces and Directors

‘Wauges and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

The amount recognised as an expense for the following pension plans is as follows:

Defined benefit costs
Defined contribution costs

The average monthly number of employees dunng the year was as follows:

Construction
Administration

Directors’ remuneration
Long-term incentive plans
Pensions

Information regarding the highest paid Dircetor is as foliows:

Directors’ remuneration
Long-term incentive plans
Accrued penston as at 31st December

The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing at year end was as follows:

Defined contribution schemes
Deflined benefit schetmes
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2021 2020
£000 £000
222,807 263,884
23,759 29,227
24,987 28,516
271,553 321,627
2021 2020
£°000 £:000
2,802 2,809
22,185 25,707
24,987 28,516
2021 2020
1,042 1,575
284 3,702
3,856 5277
2021 2020
£ £
2,172,378 3,343,397
162,823 £7,002
19,060 7,479
2021 2020
£ £
383,501 676,844
55,147 18,699
31,984 31,813
2021 2020
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7. Net finance costs

Finance income:
Bank interest

Finance costs:
Inlerest expense on lease lisbilities
Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Net finance income

8. Profit before income tax

Included in cost of sales:

Caosl of invenlory recognised as expense
Depreciation of owned assets

Profit on disposal of fixed asseis
Depreciation of right-of-use asscis
Expense relating to shart-term leases
Expense relating (o0 low valuc leases
Research costs

Included in administrative expenses:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Foreign exchange gains

Audit of Group's consolidated {inancial statemcents
Audit of parent Company's financial staicments

Audit of parent Company's subsidiaries and relared entities

Total aodit [ees

Audit related services
Other non-audit service fees
Total fees paid by Group
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1021 2020
£000 £000
3,060 3,333
1.676 1,848

346 618
2,022 2,476

1,038 857
2021 2020
£°000 £000

847 455
1,484 3,485
(855} (N
6,925 5,898
2,512 655

{87 .

178 73
2,922 2,723
1,446 -

- (30)
5 5
2 2

577 581

584 588

584 588
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9. Income tax

The major componeals of income (ax expensc for the years ended 315t December 2021 and 2020 are:

Cansolidated profit or loss 2021 2020
£%000 £000
Current income tax
Curren income tax charpe 3,676 1,695
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 3,594 {1,060)
Total current tax charge 12,270 635
Deferred tax
Current year tax (ceedit} / charge {481) 1,423
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous year 2,868 741
Impact of change in corporate tax rate (3.898) (1,944)
Tatal deferred tax (credit) / cherge {1.510) 220
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 10,760 855
Caounsolidated other compreheasive incame 2021 1020
£'0600 £'000
Current tax credit on pensions (3,388) (2,338)
Deferred tax charge on pepsions {note 28) 21,416 1,276
Total tax charge / (credit) reported in other comprehiensive income 18,028 (1,062)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by UK tax rale for 2021 and 2020

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 34,746 13,033
Profit before tax from a disconlinued operation 38,520 9,403
Accounting profit before income tax 73,266 22,416
Prafit before tax multiplied by standard rate of comparation tax in the UK
19% (2020: 15%) 13,920 4,263
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 716 557
Adjustment in respect of prior years 6,463 (319)
Change in rate {3,345) {2,611)
SEOP adjustment to OCI '(26) 187
Taotal tax charge 17,728 2.077
Income tax attributable to continuing operations 10,760 855
income tax attributable to discontinued operations 6,968 1,222
17,728 2,077

Changes {n corporation tax rate

The Finance (No.2) Act 2013 reduced the main rate of UK corporation tax to 19%, cifective from 1 April 2017. A further
reduction in the UK carporation tax rate to [7% was expected ta come into effect from | April 2020 (as enacted by Finance
Act 2016 on |5 September 20148). However, legislation introduced in the Finance Act 2020 (enacted on 22 July 2020) repealed
the reduction of the corporation tax rate, thereby maintaining the current rate of 19%. The UK, Budget 2021 announcements
on 3 March 2021 included measures 1o support ceenomic recovery as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. These
included an increase to the UK’s main corporation tax mte 1o 25%, which is due © be effective from | April 2023, These
changes were substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and hence deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at
25% (2020 — 19%4) which represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.
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10. Discontinued operations

On 24th February 2020, the Compeny publicly announced the decision of its Board of Directors 0 withdraw from highways
mair(enance, rail maintenance and strect lighting maintwnance sectors and therefore sell the Infrastructure Services operating
unit. Al the end of 2020, the shareholders of the Company approved the plan to sell 1the operating unit and [nfrastructure
Services was classificd as a disposal Group held [or sale and presented as a discontinued operation. The presentation of the
prior year consolidated profit and loss account has been updated to be in compliance with the presentation and disclosure
requirements as per [AS 1 and TFRS 5. As a result, the Group has removed the discontinued and total column from the prior
year consolidaied profit and loss account and instead presented the results of the discontinued operztion as a single line item
on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account within ‘profit after tax from discontinued operations’. The details of the

components of the discantinued operations have been included within this note, which has been restated.

The sale of Infrastructure Scrvices was completed on the 30th April 2021 for cash procecds of £53,722,000. The resuls of
the operating unit up until the date of disposal is presented below.

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Cther operating income

Administration expenses

Operating profit

Gain on disposal of business operations

Finance costs

Profit before tax from discontinued ogerations

Tax:
Related 10 pre-iax profit from ordinary activities
Related to gain on sale of discontinued operation

Profit for the year [rom discontinued gperations

2021 2020
£'000 £7000
126,888 334,040
(110,644) (310,059}
16,244 23,941
- 387
(6,401) 13,831
9,843 10,497
29,069 -
(392) (1,094)
38,520 9,403
(1,796) (1,222
(5,172) -
1} 552 B, 18]

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Infrastructure Services operating unit at the date of disposal and the associated

gain recogniscd in the financial statements is as follows:

Assels

Intangible assets

Property, plant and cquipment
Right of use assets

{nventory

Contract assels

Debtors

Liabilities
Contract liabilities
Creditors
Provisions

Lease liabilitics

Net assets disposed

Sale proceeds
Net assets disposed
Disposal costs and warranties provided

Gain on disposal

2021
£000

1,205
1,938
24,840
3,191
28,179
38
59,411

26,349
1,933
i,168

23,132

52,582

6,829
53,722
{6,829)

{17,824)

29,069
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10. Discontinued operations - continued

The net cash flows incurred by Infrastructure Services, are as follows:

2021 2020

£2000 £7000

Operating 3912 17,804
[nvesting (103) {1,065)
Financing (2,302) (6,830
Net cash inflow 1,507 9 906

11. Profit/(loss) of parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the statement of comprehensive income of the parent Company is
not presented as part of these financial statements. The Company’s profil after tax for the financial year was £27,406,000
{2020: £35,213,0000,

12, Intangible assets

Group

IT Software
£1960
Cost
Al 1st January 2021 21,278
Additions 2,804
Disposals (14,448)
At 3ist December 2021 9,634
Amntortisation
At st January 2021 8,205
Disposals (8,205)
At 315t December 2021 -
Impairment
At 1 st January 2021 6,243
Disposals (6,243)
Net book value
At 3135t December 2021 9,634
At 315t December 2020 6,830
Company
I'T Software
£°000

Cost
At 1st January 2021 6,830
Additions 2,804
Al 3tst December 2021 9,634
Amortisation
At st January 2021 and 3 1st December 2021 -
Net hook value
At 315t December 2021 9,634
At 315t December 2020 683

4§
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost

At 1st January 202!
Additions

Disposals

At 31st December 2021
Depreciation

At 15t January 2021
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal
At 315t December 202]

Net book value
At 3]st December 2021

At 315t December 2020

Company

Cost

At 1st Janvary 2021
Additions

At 31st December 202}
Depreciation

At st Jannary 2021
Charge for the year

At 315t December 2021

Net book value
At 31st Decemaber 2021

At 31st December 2020

Freehald Leasehold Plant and

property improvements machinery Totals

£'000 £7000 £7000 £'900

97 10,742 59,601 70,440

- 739 2,732 3471

R - (2,107) (2,107)

97 11,481 60,226 71,804

- 5,000 44,866 49,366

- 388 3,096 3,484

. - (1.535) {1,535)

- 5,388 46,427 51,815

97 5,093 13,799 19,989

97 5.742 14,735 20,574
Leaschold Plant and

impravements machinery Totals

£7000 £°000 £'000

10,626 19,131 29,757

739 820 1,559

11.365 19,951 31,316

4,884 18,584 23,468

3E8 1,003 1.391

5272 19,587 24.859

6,093 364 6,457

5,742 547 6,289
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14. Right-of-use Assets

Group

Al Ist January 2021

Additicns

Depreciation

[mpairment

Effect of modification of lease terms
Disposals

At 315t December 2021

Company

At 1st January 2021

Additions

Depreciation

Impaireent

Effect of modificatdon of lease terms
Disposals

At 31st December 2021

15. Invesiments

Group

Cost
At 1st January 2021 and 315t December 2021

Pruvistous
At st January 2021 and 31st December 2021

Net book value
Al 31st December 2021

At 3151 December 2020

Land and Plznt and Motor
Buildings equipment Vehicles Totals
£'000 £000 £1000 £'000
39,404 128 5,994 45,526
675 4,724 4,454 9,853
(3,992) (2,426) (3.429) (9,847)
(1,446) . - (1,446)
2436 - 38 2,474
(1,200} - (699) (1,899)
35877 2,426 6,358 44 661
Land and Plant and Motor

Buildings equipment Vehicles Totals
£'000 £000 £2000 £7000
35833 127 5,993 41,953

- 3,622 4,454 8,076

(1,865} (2.271) {3,430) (7,566)
(700) - - {700)
2,276 - ki 2,314

. - {(697) (697)

35,544 1,478 6,358 43,380
‘Shareg in
participations-

£000

3.937

3,367

3,937

3
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15. Investments — continued

Company
Investment
in Group
undertakings
£000
Cost
At st January 2021 and 3 [st December 2021 90,361
Provisions
At st January 2021 41,123
Pravision for ycar 340
At 31st December 2021 41 463
Net book value
At 315t December 202§ 48,898
At 31st December 2020 49 238

The Company's investments at the Statement of Financial Position date in the share capital of compunics are listed below:

Subsidiaries

The following subsidiary undenakings all have construction as their principal activity (except where marked *, where the
principal activity is the development of property to hold for investment purposes, ** where the principal activity is the
development of property and *** where the Company is dormant), The subsidiary undertakings marked **** are indirectly
owned but not controlled by the Company and therefore the results of these companies are not included in the consolidated
financial statements. All companies are registered in England and Wales except Cementation Skanska lreland Ltd which is
regislered in [reland and Skansks ESS Construction HB which is registered in Sweden. Unless stated otherwise, the registered
office in England and Wales is: Maple Cross House, Denham Way, Maple Cross, Rickmansworth, Lfertfordshire, WD3 9SW.
The registered offiee in Ircland is: 1 Stokes Place, S$t Stephen's Green, Dublin 2 and the registered office in Sweden is
Odarslévsvigen 113, 225 92 Lund

The following subsidiaries are 100% directly owned. All shares arc the same class of ordinary shares.

Skanska Construction UK Lid

Skanska Project Developments Lid**

Skanska Technology Ltd

Cementation Construction Led***
Cementation Mining Lud***

Davy Mining Ltd***

Skanska Construction Company Ltd***
Skanska Healthcare Trustees Lid**+

Skanska Construction {Regions) Lid

Trollope & Colls Lid

Skanska Construction Services Ltd

Skanska Trustceships Ltd***

Skanska Infrastructure Developroent UK Limited
Skanska Infrastructure Invesiment UK Limited
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15, Iavestments continued
The following subsidiaries are 100% Indirectly owned unless stated othernwvise

Cementation Skanska Ltd

Cementation Skanska Ircland Lid (in liquidation)

Clark & Fenn Skanska Ltd

Skanska 1. V. Projects Lid

Skanska Major Projecis Lid

Skuesky Rashlcigh Weather{al Lid

Wilson & Jennings Lid***

SPD Moaorgate Litd*

SPD Temple Circus Lid**

SPD Engine Shed 2 Lid**

SPD Templegate Ltd**

Skanska Construction Services Trustee Lid****

Skanska TAM Lid**»*

Skenska ESS Construction HB (25% owned)

Skanska RM PSP Limited**** (87.5% vwned) - (Registered office; Third Floor Broud Quay Flouse, Prince Strcet, Bristal, BST 4DJ)
NPH Healtheare (Holdings) Limiled **** (50% owned) - (Registered affice: 3rd Floor, South Building, 200 Aldersgaie Sireer, London,
ECi4 4HD)

The following Compenies are exempt from publishing audited accounts under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006;

Trollope & Colls Ltd - registration: 00079287

Skanska Construction Regions Ltd - registration: 00225316

Skanska Construction Services Limiled - registration: 04067668

Davy Mining Limited - registration: 00473118

Wilson & Jennings Limited — registration: 60752350

Skansks J.V. Projects Limited — registeation: 33686027

Skanska Major Projects Limited - registration: 00993835

Clerk & Fenn Skanska Limited - registration; 00679167

Skansks Technology Limited -- registration: 00932158

Skanska Project Developments Limited - registration 06009021
Skanska Infrastructure Development UK Limited — registration 03024337
Skanska Infrastructire Investment UK Limited - registration 04624530
SPD Moorgate Limited - registration 11357664

SPD Temple Circus Limited - registration 10272419

SPD Enginc Shed 2 Limited — registration 10275093

SPD Templegute Limited - registration 09794314

16. Inventories

Group
2021 2020
£'000 £1000
Stocks 484 578
Propertics 4,089 4,089
4,573 4,667
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17. Trade and other receivables

Group Company

o 2020 200 2020
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Current:
Trade receivables 59,444 57410 8 656
Amounts owed by parent entity 39493 40,120 39493 40,120
Amounts owed by subsidiary companics - - 194,725 187,951
Amounts gwed by other group undertakings 460 463 1,589 1,597
Cther recejvables 32,320 36,089 17,127 11,852
Prepayments and acenued income 34,021 11,608 6,548 4,273
165,738 145,691 259,450 246,449

Trade and other receivables are part of the Group's opemting cycle and are recognised as current assets. Trade and other
reccivables are non-interest bearing ang are generally on terms of 30 o 90 days settlement. As at 31st December 2021, trade
receivabies with an initial carrying value of £4,194,G00 (2020: £3,409,000) were impaircd and fully provided for.

The table below shows the: ageing profile of wade receivables (£'000);

Current 31-60 days 61-90 days 2(-120 days 120+ days Taotal
Group 55,113 2,010 248 205 1,868 59,444
Campany - 8 - - - 8

18. Contract assels

At 315t December 2021, the Group had contract assets of £83,534,000 (2020: £85,433,000). At 31st December 2021, the
Company had contract assets of £32,788,000 (2020: £27,211,000). Contract assets consisis of amounts recoverable on
contracts. The change in coniract assets in the year is duc to normal activity and timiong of certification of work done in the
construction business,

19. Cush and cash equivalents

Group Company
202) 2020 2021 2020
£'000 1'a00 £'000 £°060
Bank accounts 519,650 422385 - 2,83¢

fncluded in this total is £57,000,000 reswricied cash held in joint amangements (2020: £60,033,000).
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20. Called up share capital

Authorised, allotted, Issued and fully paid sharc capital:

Number: Class Nominal Value: 2021 2020
£ £
3,300,000,000 Ordinary £0.05 165,000,000 165,000,000

71. Reserves

Group
Rietained
earnings
£000
At 15t January 2021 103,177
Profit for the year 55,538
Net actuarial gain on defined pension schemes 72,007
Foreign exchange loss {1.402)
Employee share award scheme 2,490
[ncome tax relating to items of other comprehensive income (18,028)
Dividends (16,100)
At 31st Decernber 2021 197,682
22, Trade and other payables
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £7000 £'000 £000

Current;
Trade payables 39,571 33,159 3,149 2,475
Amounts owed to parent entity - 3,235 - 5,823
Amounts owed te subsidiary companies - - 89,585 89,822
Dther payables 52,904 38,646 19,195 15,532
Accruals and deferred income 192,713 143,428 26,665 13,969
785,188 218,468 138,504 127,621

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are rormally on 45-day payment terms.
- Other payables are non-interest bearing
- Interest payable is normally setded quarterly throughout the financial year.
- Forterms and conditions wilh parcat entity, subsidiary companies and other group undertakings, refer to Note 31,
- For explanations on the Group's liquidity risk management process, refer 1o Note 25,

23, Contract liabilities

At 315l December 202}, the Group had contrect liabililies of £85,354,000 (2020: £88,065,000). Contract liabilities consists of
billings-in-excess. At 31st December 2021, the Company had no contract liabilities (2020: 1,286,000). The chenge in contract
limbilitics in the year is due to normal activity and timing of certification of work done in the construction business,
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24. Lease lisbilities

Group

At Lst January 2021

Additions

Interest expensc

Lease payments

Effect of modification of lease termis
Disposals

At 315t December 2021

Company

Al 1st January 2021

Additions

Interest expense

Lease paymenis

Effect of modification of [case lerms
Disposals

Al 3151 December 2021

The table below shows the payments and commitments for operating leascs not capitalised

Short term lease cxpense
Low value lease cxpense

The table below shows incremental borrowing rate (IBR) used to measure lease liabilitics:

Lense Term 1 year 1 years

Q4 2020
Ql2p21

Q3 2021
Q4 2021

1.7 !
1.5 I
Q22021 1.3 1.
13 1
1.6 I

56

Land and Plant and Motor
Bulldings equipment Vetiicles Totals
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
57,237 120 5,990 63,347
675 4,724 4,454 9,853
1,474 43 159 1,676
(8,137) (2,412) (3,598) {14,147)
2,436 - 38 2474
(1,205) - (702) (1,907
52 480 2475 6,341 61,296
Land and Plant and Motor
Buildings equipment Vehicles Totals
£7000 £'000 £°000 £000
48,754 121 5,989 54,864
- 3,622 4,454 8076
1,269 27 159 1,455
(4,395) (2,256) (3,598) (10,249)
2,276 - 38 2314
- - (706) (706}
47,904 1,514 6,336 55,754
Group Company
2021 2021
£'000 £000
2,512 -
187 -
Discaunt rate (%)
3 years 5 years 10 years 15 years 30 year
1.7 22 3.3 3.5 4.3
1.6 2.1 ER| 32 4.0
1.5 20 30 3.1 3.7
1.6 2.1 3.0 3 3.5
2.0 2.4 30 i1 33
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25. Financial instruments
Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Group and the Company's business.

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place. Credit evaluations are performed on all prospective customers prior to entering into
construction contracts and exposure ta credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Atthe statement of financial position date
there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
arnount of {rade receivables and contract ssscts at the statement of financial position date.

Interest rate risk

The Group and Company do not seck Lo reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest rates through the use of derivative financial
instrumeents, The Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through an inter-Company UK pooling armangement
and does not have any bank debt or other external borrowings or facilities.

Liguidity risk

The Group uses cash-flow projections as a means of managing ke fluctuations in short-term liquidity and to minimisc the risk
that it cannot meet its paymcent obligations due to lack of liquidity. As at 31st December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents totalling £519,650,000 (2020: £422,385,000) and no debt. Included in this total is £57,000,000 restricted cash
held in Joint arrangements (2020: £60,033,000),

The Board is confident that the Group has sufficient cash resources in light of the challenges arising from the COVID-19
pasdemic and are continuatly assessing the impact of COVID-19 on cash flow and forecasts across the business (Note 2).

Effective interest rates and maturity analysis

As gt 31st December 2021, income-eaming (mancial assets of the Group comprised cash and cash equivalents totalling
£519,650,000 (2020: £422,385,000) and of the Company £nil (2020: £2,839,000). Interest iz carned on net cash balances at
floating rates linked to the Swedish base rate, The Group has no overdraft or bank debt.

Fair Value

The catrying emounts shown in the financial position of all financial assets and financial liabilities arc not considered to be
materially different 1o their fair value, The investments do not have a quoted price in an active market and arc measured a1
cost because the faic value cannot otherwise be measured.

Sensitvity analysis
At 31st December 2021 and 31st December 2020, it was estimated that a general rise of one percentage point in interest rales

would have no material impact on profit before tax,

Capital requirements vary between business streams. The Group's construction projects are mainly based on customer fanding.
As aresull, in its Construction Business strearn, the Group can operate with low levels of cash investment (negative working
capital). However, the equity requirement for a construction Company is substantial and is related 1o the large business volume
and to the risks inherent in the various types of construction assignments carried out. The Group must also take into account
the performance guaraniees required in procured projects. The Board has determined that the Group's equity is at a reasonable
level based on what its financial position requires.

Capital Management

Capital requirements vary between business streams. The Group’s construction projects are mainly based on customer funding.
As a resull, in its construction business stream, the Company can operate with low levels of cash investment {negative working
capital}. The free working capital within the construction business stream together with the Group's operations make il possible
for the Group to finance investments in its own project development.

A number of financiat targets have been cstablished that are judged to best reflect the profitability of the operations and best
demonstrale the financial scope for investmen! and growth, The retumn on equity and on capital employed is a measure of how
well the capital provided by the sharcholders and lenders is being used. No changes were made in the objectives, policics or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 315t Pecember 2021 and 2020,
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25, Financial instruments — continued

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Loaas and receivables
Caontract assets 83,534 85,433 32,788 27211
Trade receivables 59,444 57,410 8957 656
Amounts owed by fellow Group undertakings 39,953 40,583 235,807 229,668
Other receivables 312,320 36,088 13,107 11,853
Fingncial asscis
Cash and cash cquivalents 519,650 422 385 - 2,839
Total Financial Assels 734,901 641,899 290,659 272,227
Financial Hebilities
Conitract liabilitics 85,354 88,065 - 1,286
Trade payables 39,571 33,159 3,149 2,475
Amounts owed to {cllow Group underiakings - 31,235 86,585 95,646
Other paynbles 52,504 38,646 15,195 15,532
Leasc liabilities 61,296 63,347 55,754 54,863
Borrowings - - 16,603 -
Total financial tiabilities 239,125 226,452 184,286 169,802
Maturity analysis for non-derivative financial Habilities
On demand Less than 3 More than 3
months months
£°000 £'060 £000
Year ended 31st December 2021
Trade and other payables (Group) 2,306 67,813 22,536
Trade and other payables (Company) - 22,344 -
Year ended 315t December 2020
Trade and other payables {Group) 2,183 35,969 33,653
Tradc and other payables (Company) - 15,681 2,315
The table below shaws the undiscounted maturity analysis for lease liability payments:
Group Upte3 Between 3 Between | Between 2 Over 5
months and 12 and 2 and § years
months years years
At 31st Decemnber 2021 £'600 £000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Lease liabilitics 3492 8,852 1.756 12,388 39,809
Company Uptod Between 3 Between | Between 2 Over 5
months and 12 and 2 and § years
months years years
Al 31st Decemnber 2021 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Leasc tiabilitics 2,516 6,177 6,552 10,854 39,467
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25. Financial instruments ~ continoed

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities - current

Less: cash and shori-term deposits

Net surplus

Shareholders’ equity
Capital and net debt

CGearing ratio %

26. Provisions

2021

At Est January 2021
Released in year
Created in year
Reclassification
Utilised

Dispaosals

Exchange differences

At 31st December 2021

2020

At st January 2020
Released in year
Crealed in year
Reclassification
[ilised

Held for sale

At 31st December 2020

2021 2020

£'000 £000

285,188 218,468

85,354 88,065,

10,862 10,278

(519,650) {422,385)

(138,246) (105,574)

362,682 268,177

224,436 162,603

-61.6% -64.9%

Forward Warranty Other Total
loss on
contracts &
disputes

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

6,236 62,669 13,921 82,826

{921) (8,557) (2,299) (11.777)

3,085 26,149 24,080 53,314

- (4,250) 430 (3,820}

(4.340) (9,155) (7,399) (21,394)

(299) - - {299)

- {42) - 42)

3,761 66,814 28,213 98,808

15,994 33,897 19,254 69;145

(6,103) (27,617} (6,498) (40,2i8)

4,181 5927 14,483 77,935

(5,709) 6,445 (420) 316

(2,120 {9,159) {11,898) (23,184}

- {168) (1,000) (1,168)

6,236 62,609 13,921 82,826

The amount and timing of payment of provisions for liabililies is uncertain but they are expecied (o be made substantially

within two years,

Warranty provisions are made in the normal cause of our business, Other provisions include provisions for insurance and legal
claims, all of which are incurred in the normal course of business. Due to the nature of such potential liabilities the period of

ulilisation is not ascertinable.

No provision is made for any tax on capital gains or lax arising in the event of the distribution of profits retained by overseas
subsidiaries and associates as no liability is expected to erystallise.
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27. Deferred tax

Group

Accelerated Capital Allowances
Deferred tax on pension balance
Unrelieved trading losses

Other

Taoltal

At beginning of year

Deferred tax movement in P&L
Deferred tax direct to equity

Total

Coampany

Accelerated Capital Allowances
Deferred tax on pension balance
Unrelieved trading losses

Other

Total

At beginning of year

Deferred tax movement in P&I
Deferred tax direct to equity

Total

2021 2020
Asset Liahility Total Asset Liability Total
£100 £'000 £:000 £°000 £000 £°000
1,742 - 1,742 2,127 - 2,127
- {13,496) (13,496) 5,953 5,953
510 - 610 2,962 - 2,962
6,941 - 6,941 4,977 (2,556) 2,421
9.293 {13,496) (4,203} 16,019 (2,556) 3,461
16,019 (2,556) 13,463 16,614 (1.842) 14,172
1,194 2,556 3,750 494 (714) {220)
(7,920) (13,496} (21,416) (1,089) - (1,089)
9,293 {13.496) {4,203) 16,019 (2,556) 13,463
2021 2020
Assct Liability Total Asset Liability Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £7000
741 - 741 761 - 761
- {13,718) (13,718) 5,342 - 5,342
309 - 309 953 - 953
1,526 - 1,526 1,290 - 1,290
2,576 {13,718} (11,142) 8,346 - 3,346
8346 - 8,346 8,284 - 8,284
1,339 - 1,339 817 - 817
{7,109) (13,718) (20,827) (755) - {155)
2,576 {13,718) (11,142} 8,346 - 8,346

The deferred tax asset has been recoguised as the Direclors have reviewed the Group's future forecast profits and arc satisfied

that there will be sufficient profits to utilise the deferred tax asset.
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28. Employee bhenefit obligations

The Group, through trustess, operates a number of pension schemes; The Skanska Pension Fund, the Federated Pension Plan
and The McNichglas Plc Retirement Benefits Scheme. Details of the latest actuarial vetuations and reviews and the
assumptions used by the actuarics are set out below.

For The MeNicholas Plc Retirernent Benefit Scheme the Group conclude that there is not an unconditional right of refund and
therefore under IAS 19, IFRIC 14, the Group only recognises the asset of the pension fund up to the limit of the Hability, {the
asset ceiling). Far the other pension schemes the Group conclude thae that there is an unconditional right of refund and therefore
if there is a pension surplus this will be recognised in the accounts.

Pension obligations and plan asscis:

2021 2020

(%) {%)

Active members' portion of obligations 5 15
Dormans pension rights 56 45
Pensioners” portion of obligations 39 40
Weighted average duration 20 years 20 years

There are various types of risk inherent in the Company's defined-benefit pension plans. Pension obligations are mainly
affected by the relevant discount rate, wage increases, inflation and life expectancy. The risk inherent in the plan assets is
miainly market risk. Overall, these risks may result in volatility in the Company’s equity and in increased future pension costs
and higher than estimated pension disbursements. Skanska continually moniters changes in its pension obligations and updates
the most important assumptions every guarter and other assumptions at least once a year. Pension commitments are calculated
by independent actuaries. The Company has prepared policy docurnents for the management of plan assets in the form of
investment guidelines regulating permitted investments and alloestion frameworks for these. In addition, the Company uses
external investment advisors who continually monitor development of the plan assets. The long duratian of the pension
obligations is partly matched by long-term investments in infrastructure projects and property investments, and investments in
long-term interest-bearing securities.

a} The Skanska Pension Fund

The Group, in its capacity as employer, participates in The Skanska Pension Fund. The furd was closed to further accruals on
3 st March 201 8. Total contributions paid during the year by the Group (excluding cmployee contributions) were £15,030,000
(2020: £14,547,000). Ultimately, the contributions arc met by the particular Group company for which the cmployees are
warking. The Group expects (o contribute spproximately £13.7 miltion to the Fund in the next financia! year.

There are various types of risk inherent in the Company’s defined benefil pension plans, Pension obligations are mainly
affected by the relevant discount rate, wage increases, inflation and life expectancy, The risk inherent in the plan assets is
mainly market risk. Overall, these risks may result in volatility in the Company’s equity and in increased fulure pension
costs and higher than estimated peosion disburserments. Skanska continually manitors changes in its pension obligalions and
updates the most important assumptions every quarter and other assumptions at least once a year. Pension commitments are
caleulated by independent actuaries.

The Company has prepared policy documents for the management of plan assets in the form of investment guidclines
reguiating peemitted investments and allocation frameworks for these. In addition, the Company uses extemnel investment
advisors who continually monitor devefopment of the plan assets. The long duration of the pension obligations is partly
magtched by the lang-term investments in infrastructure projects and properly investments, and investments in loog-term
interest-bearing securitics.

The 315t December 2021 voluation is an update of the actuarial valuation at 315t March 2019 but uses a lower rete of rehurn
on agsets 1o discount the scheme liabilitics.

The actuarial valuation in accordance witlt TAS [9 used the prajected unit cost method based on the following assumplions:

221 2020 2419 2018

(%) (%) (%) (%)

Inflation 325 3.00 3.00 325
Rate of increase of pension 310 290 2.90 315
Rute of increase for defested pension 265 230 2.20 2.25
Pre and post retirement rates to discount scheme linbilities 1.60 1.40 2.00 2.75
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28. Employee benefit obligations - continued
Life expectancy after age 65 is 22 years for men and 24 years for women (2020: 22 years for men and 24 for women),

The financia} position of the fund bascd on the above assumptions

2021 2020 2019 2018

£7000 £°000 £7004 £7000

Scheme liabilities (912,551) (928,059) (840,819) (747,751)
Scheme assers 967,425 899,984 807,748 715,7G5
Total surplus/(deficit) 54,874 (28,115) (33,071) (32,046)
Related deferred tax (liabilityYassel (13,719) 5,342 5,622 5.448
Net pension asset/(liability) 41,155 (22.773) (27,449 {26,598)

The fair valuc of the fund asscts and the expected retum on those assets are as follows:

Valuation Vuluation of Expected Expected

of assets asyets return return

2021 2020 2021 2020

£:000 £000 %% Y

Quoted UK cquities 67,285 96,144 .60 1.40
Quoted pverscas equitics 107,096 241,501 1.60 1.40
Quoted gilts fixed 223,104 160,009 1.60 1.40
Quoted gilts index linked 212,513 141,705 1.60 .40
Quoted UK corporale bonds fixed 3,590 9,354 1.60 1.46
Quoted UK corporute bonds index linked 2,215 B 1.60 1.40
Quoted government bonds fixed averseas 25,547 12,639 1.60 1.40
Quoted government bonds index linked overseas 10,243 - 1.60 1.40
Quoted averseas corporate bonds fixed 13,866 28,020 1.60 140
Cash 147,632 12,938 1.60 1.40
[nfrastructure assets 1,448 49,000 1.60 1.40
Freehold property* 17,600 17,600 1.60 1.40
Other 134,488 130,984 1.60 140
Total 967,425 899,984 1.60 1.40

*The Company has a long-term lcase with Skanska Consiruction Services Trustees Limited {a related party).

2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Actual retumn on fund sssets 77,478 103,960

The expected long-term returns on assels assumption is assessed by considering the current level of expecied risk-frec
investments in quoted government bonds.
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28. Emplayee benefit obligations - continued

Analysis of the amount charged to the profil or loss

2021 1010
£7000 £'000
Current service cosl - -
Employec contribution - -
Total operating charge - -
Anglysis of the emount charged to Other Finance Cost
2021 202q
£000 £'000
Expeeted rotum on pension scheme assets 12,517 16012
Interest on pension liabilities (12,821) {16,548)
Net finance return {304) (536)
Analysis of amount recognised in Statemnent of Comprehensive Income
2021 2020
£'000 £1000
Actual return less expected retumn on assels 64,961 87,948
Experience gains and losses on liabilities - (4,595)
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Changes in financiaf assumptions 5,164 (580,250}
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in statement of comprehensive income 70,125 {6.897)
Cumulative loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income (136,604) {206,72%)
Movemtent in the present value of defined beuefit obligation
Present value of obligation 1st January 918,099 840,819
Interest cost 12,821 16,548
Benefits paid {23.205) (24,113)
Actuarial {gains)/losscs {(5,164) 94,845
Obligation atr 31st December 912,551 928,099
Changes in fair value of fund asscts
Fair valut of plan asseis, st January 299,934 807,748
Expected return on fund assets 12,517 16,012
Employer contribution 15,030 14,547
Bencfits paid (23,2005} (24,113)
Administrative expenses {1,862) (2,158)
Actuarial gaing 64,961 87,948
Fair value at 31st Decernber 967,425 §99,984
Scherne surplus/{deficit) 54,874 (28,113)
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28. Employee benefit obligations - continued

[istory of expericnce gains and losses:

2021 2020 201% 2018
Difference between expected and actual retum
on scheme assets £'000: 64,961 87,948 B7,878 (34,403}
Percentage of scheme assets % 6. 7% 9.8% 10.9% (4.8%)
Expericace gains and losses on scheme
liabilities £°000: - (4,595) - 11,128
Percentage of scheme liabilitics % - (0.5%) - [.5%
Total amount recognised in statement of
comprehensive income £°000: 70,125 (6,897) {11,538) 35,654
Percentage aof scheme liabilities % 1.7% (0.7%) (1.4%) 4.8%

Sensitdvity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis is based on existing circumstances, assumptions and populations. Sensitivity of pension obligation at
the year-end to changes in assumptions

2021 2620

£°000 £'000

Total pension liability at 31st December 912,551 928,099
Estimated decreasc in pension liability if discount rate increases by 0.25% {43,010) (43.473)
Estimated increase in pension liability if discount rate decreases by 0.25% 45,923 46,843
Estimated increase in pension liability if inflation rate increases by 0.25% 22,123 32,304
Estimated decrease in pension liability if inflation rate decreases by 0.25% (21,385) ~ (28,753)

b) The Federated Pension Plan

The Group also sponsors The Federaied Pension Plan, & defined benefit pension plan. The benefit provided by this plan is a
final salary benefit. The assets of the Plan are held separately under Trust from those of the Group and are invested by the
Trustee, having taken appropriate investment advice. As at 31st December 2021, in accordance with the Plan rules there were
no outstanding contributions. The pension contributions are set by the Trustees based on the advice of the Fund actuary. The
Group expects to contribute approximately £3.4 million to the plan in the next financial year,

The following valuation is an update of the actuary's valuation at 5th April 2018. The actuarial valuation in accordance with
[AS 19 used the projected unit actuarial valuation based on the following assumptions:

2021 2020 2019 2018

(%) (%) (%) (%)

[nflation 31.2% 100 3.00 3.25
Rate of increase of salaries 3.50 325 3325 3.50
Rate of increase of pension 3.25 3.00 3.00 3.2
Rate of increase of deferred pensions 325 3.00 3.00 3.35
Pre and post retircment rates to discount schemc liabilities 1.60 1.40 2.00 2.75



Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 315t December 2021

28. Employee benefit obligations - continued

Life expectancy after age 65 is 22 years (2020: 22 years) for men and 24 years (2020: 24 years) for women. The financial

position of the scheme based on the above assumptions is detailed below:

2021 2020 2019 2018

£'000 £'000 £'040 £'000

Scheme liabilities (99,306) {94,622) (87,546) (73411

Scheme assets 98,413 YIA406 82,842 68,473

Scheme deficit (893) (3,216} (4,704) (4,938)
The fair value of the fund assets and the expected return on those assets are as follows:

Valuation Valuation Expected Expected

of agsets of assets return return

2021 2020 2021 2020

£'000 £7000 % Ya

Quoted equitics 44,744 55,913 2.00 200

Quoted gilts fixed 48 424 35,140 2.00 2.00

Quoted corporate bonds 5,245 - 2.00 2,00

Cash - 353 2.00 2.00

Tatal 98,413 91,406 2.00 2.00

The expected long-term rctums on assets assumption is assessed by considering the current level of expected risk-free

investments in quoted govermment bands.

Analysis of amount recognised to profit or loss

Current service cost
Employee contribution
Total operating charge

Aunalysis of amount charged to Other Finance Cost

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension liabilitics
Net finance return

Analysis of amount recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Actual return less expected retum on agsels

Experience gains and losses on liabilities

Changes in demographic assumptions

Changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial gain recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Cumaulative loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income
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2021 2020
£'000 £900
3,250 3,243
(448) (434)
2,802 7,809
2021 2020
£000 £000
1,202 1,672

{1,333) (1,764)
(41} {92)
2021 2020
£'000 £1000
3,893 5,332
(924) 2,067
(1,087) (6,094)
1,882 1,305
(11,876) (13,758)




Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st Decerber 2021

28. Employee benefit obligations - continued

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

2021 2020
£000 £°600
Present value of obligation |5t January 94,622 87,546
Service cost 3,250 3,243
Interest cost 1,333 1,764
Benefits paid (1,910 (1,958)
Curtailment losses - -
Actuarial losses 2,011 4.027
Closing balance, 3 1st December 99,306 94,622
Changes in fair valuc of fund assels
2021 2820
£'000 £'000
Fair value of plan assets, |st January 91,406 82,842
Expected retwn on plan assets 1,292 1,672
Company contribution 3407 3,278
Employee contribution 448 434
Benefits paid (1,910) {1,958)
Administrative expenscs (123) (194)
Actuarial gains 3.893 5,332
Closing balance, 31st Decomber 98,413 91,406
History of experience gains and losses:
2021 20286 2019 2618
Differcree between expected and actual return
on scheme assets £7000: 3,893 5,332 11,084 4,147)
Percentage of scheme asscts % 4% 6% 3% (6%)
Experience gains and losses on scheme
liabifities £7000: (924) 2.067 (3.112) (243)
Percentage of scheme liabilities % {1%) 2% {4%) {-)
Total amount recognised in statement of
comprehensive inceme £'000: 1,882 1,305 (201) (601)
Pcreentage of schemne liabilitics % 2% 1% {-) {1%}
The sensitivity analysis is based on existing circumstances, assumptions, and populations
Scnsitivity of pension obligation at the year-end to changes in assumptions
2021 2020
£'000 £900
Total pension liability at 31st December 99,306 94,622
Estimated decreasc in pension liability if discount rate increases by 0.25% (5,036) {5.123)
Estimated increase in pension liability if discount rate decreases by 0.25% 5,935 5,448
Estimated increasc in pension fiability ifinflation rate increases by 0.25% 6,186 5,318
Estimated decrease in pension liability if inflation rate decreases by 0.25% (5,263 (4,707)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financiz] Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

28. Employee benefit obligations - continued

¢) The McNicholas Pic Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group also sponsors The McNicholas Pl Retirement Benefits Scheme, a defined benefit plan. The assets of the Schemc
arc held separately under Trust from those of the Group and are invested by the Trusice, having taken appropriate investracnt
advice. Asat 31st December 2021, in accordance with the Scheme rules there were no owtstanding contributions. The pension
contributions are set by the Trustees based on the advice of the Fund actuary. The Group does nol expect (o contribute to the

plan in the next financial year.

For The McNicholas Ple Retirement Benefit Scheme the Group believes there is not an unconditional right of refund and
therztore under [AS 19 and IFRIC 14, the Group only recognises the asset of the pension fund up to the limit of the liability

(the asset ceiling).

The scheme was closed to both new members and future accruals in 2003,

The valuation below is an update of the actuarial valuation at 28th February 2018. The actuarial valuation in accordance with
IAS 19 used the projected unit cost method based on the following assumptions:

2021 2020 2019 2018
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Inflation 325 3,00 3.00 325
Rawe of increase of salaries 3.50 315 325 350
Rate of increase of pension 310 2.90 3.00 3.25
Rate of increase for deferred pensions 2.65 2.30 3.00 325
Pre and post retirement rates to discount scheme liobilities 1.60 AR 2.00 215
Life expectancy after age 65 is 22 years {2020: 22 years) for men and 24 ycars (2020: 24 ycars) (or women.
The financizal position of the scheme bascd on the above assumptions is detailed below:
2021 2020 2018 2018
£4000 £'000 £000 £'000
Scheme liabilities (21,i09) (21,221) (22,223) (20,285)
Scheme asseis excluding asset ceiling 24822 24,901 22,632 20,212
Less asset ceiling provision (3,713) (3,680) {409) {742)
Pension deficit - - - (815}
The fair value of the fund assets and the expected retum on those assets are 85 follows:
Valuation Valuation Expected Expected
of assety of assets return return
2021 1020 202t 2020
£000 £'000 % %a
Quoted UK equities 1,454 1,210 200 .00
Quoted UK bonds 10,297 11,886 2.00 2.00
Other 13,071 11,805 2.00 2.00
Total 24,822 24,901 200 2.00
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28. Employee benefit obligations — continued

The expected long-term retums on assels assumptlion is assessed by considering the current level of expected risk-free

investments in quoted povernment bonds,

Analysis of the amount charged to profit or loss.

Current service cost

Analysis of amount charged to Other Finance Cost

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on peasion liabifities
Nect finance return

Analysis of amount recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Actual retumn less expected returm on assets

Experience gains and Josses on liabilities

Changes in demographic assumplions

Changes in financial assumptions

Eftect of the asset ceiling,

Actuarial loss recognised in slatement of comprehensive income

Cumulative gain recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Movement in the present value of defincd benefit obligation

Present value of obligation |* January

Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains

Closing balance, 31" December

Changes in [air valuc of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, 17 January
Expected return on plan assets

Benefits paid
Actnarial losses

Closing batance, 31* December
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2021 2020
£'000 £7000
2021 2020

£000 £'000
294 439
{294) (439}

2021 2020

£000 £1000
2) (901}
(243) 230
245 671
1,921 1,921

2021 2020

£7000 £2000
21,224 22,223
204 439
(404) (540)
(2) (961)
21,109 21,221

2021 2020

£'000 £000
21,22¢ 22,223
294 439
(404) (540}
(2) {901}
21,109 21,221




Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Nauotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ernded 31st Decernber 2021

28. Emplovee benefit obligations — continued

History of experience gains and losses:

2021 2020 2019 2018
Difference between expected and actual retum
an scheme assets £°000 2) (901) 1,640 (1,239)
Percentage of scheme asscts % - (4%) % (6%}
Experience gains and losses on scheme
liabilities £°000: (243) 230 450 48
Percentage of scheme liabilities % (1%) 1% 2% -
Total amount recognised in staternent of
comprehensive income £'000: - - 38 (944)
Percentage of schere liabilities % - - {-) (5%)
The sensitivity analysis is based on existing circumstsnces, assumptions, and populations
Sensitivity of pension obligation at (he year-cnd to changes in assumptions
021 2020
£'000 £'000
Tota! pension Liability at 31st December 21,109 21221
Estimated decrease in pension liability i€ discount rate increases by 0.25% (1,009) (1,033)
Estimated increase in pension liability if discount rate decreases by 0.25% 1,060 1,088
Estimated increase in pension Jiability if inflation rate inereases by 0.25% 844 803
Estimated decreasc in pension liability if inflation rate decreases by 0.25% {798} {773)

29, Ultimate parent Company

The immediate parent undertaking is Skanska Construction Holdings UK Limited, a Company incorporated in the UK.

The ultimate parent Company is Skanska AB, a Company incorporated in Sweden, which heads the smallest and largest Group
in which the results of the Group and Company are consolidated. The registered address for Skanska AB is Warfvinges vig

25, 8E-112 74 Stockholm, Sweden,

Copics of the Skanska AB financizl statemenis can be obtained from Skanska UK Plc at Maple Cross House, Denham Way,

Rickmansworth, Herts WD3 95W.

30. Contingeot liabilities

The Group faces contingenl liabilities in respect of guarantees and petentinl claims by third parties under contracting
agrecments entered into by them in the normal course of business. These are provided as liabilitics only to the extent thut the
Directars believe that the Group has a legat or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of cconomic benefit will be required to setile the obligation. Contingent liabilities retating to the Group's portion of
the joint and several liabilities for the obligations of joint operations totalled £9,855,000 (2020: £83,293,000).
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31. Related party disclosures

Transactions between the parent entity, subsidiary companics and other Group undentakings are detailed below. Balances with
the Parent entity, subsidiary companies and other Group undertakings are disclosed in the debtors and creditors notes. Amounts

awed (o and from these enlities are unsecured and interest free.

Related party Natore of relatianship Good/serviee provided Trunsactions iy yrar
pii13) W06
£'000 £1000
Skanska Fellow Group underaking Ullimutely Skanskn 1K Plc paid dividends 16,100 35,000
Construction owned by Skanska AH to this Entity im the year.
Holdings UK
Lirmited
Skonaka AB Ultimate parent Company of Skansks Sxanska AB provides 1,080 1,314
UK Ple monngement services to Skanska
UK Pic
Skanska AH Ultisnate parent Company of Skaasks Skanska AB receives 645 756
UK Plc management services from
Skmnska UK Fic
Skanske TAM Skansks TAM Limijted botds Public Skanska UK Flc provides 13 15
Limited Fi tal Initiative i r gecaunting services o the catity,
behalf of the Skanskn Pension Fund
Skansks TAM Skanskn TAM (Nomdic) Limited holds Skanskas UK PLC provides B 57
{(Nendic) Limited Public Fi ial [nitimtive inv accounting services 1o the entity,
on behall of the pension schemes of
Tellow group undeviakings
Skaasks Skiinska Construction Services Skanska UK Ple rents an office 1,388 1,532
Construction Trustee Limited is 4 corporate trustes in Doncaster from the Skanska
Services Truster of ke Skanska Pension Fund Pension Fund
Limdted
Skanskn Fellow Group undenaking. Ultimately Skansks UK Ple provides - 33
Residential owned by Skanska AB management aod fheilitics
Developments mapagement services to the
UK Limited entity.
BoKlak UK Fellow Group undenaking Himarely Skanska UK PLC provide 3,457 3,047
Limiled owned by Skanska AR payroll services aind stalf costy
1a the entity.
Skanska USA Fellow CGroup undensking. Ultimately Skanska USA recharges for stalf 518 440
owned by Skanska AB costs provided to Skanska UK
Plc.
Skanska Poland Fellow Group undertoking. Ultimately Skanghn UK PLC recherges for 45 16
owned by Skansks AB staff coxts provided to the entity,
Skunska Sverige Fellow Group undertaking. Ultimntely Skansks UK PLC recharges for - 34
AB awned by Skanska AR staff costs provided to the entiry.
Skansks CDE Sp Fellow Group underuking, Ultimately Skansks UK PLC recharges for - 270
700 owned by Skanska AB slaff vosts provided to the entity,

Remuncration of key management personael
Details of remuneration of the Direciors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, are contained in Note 6.
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Notes to the Consvlidated Fingncial Stxtements
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32. Reconcillation of profit before income tax to cagh used iz operstions

Group

Profit before income tax
Depreciation and impairment

Proful on sele of business operations
Increase in provisious

Employec owncership scheme
Pension scrvice cost

Pension company contribution
Finance costs

Finance income

Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
[nerease/{decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Company

Profit before income tax
Depreciation and impairment
Impairment of investments
Dividends received

Employee ownership scheme
Pension company contribution
Finance costs

Finance income

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
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2021 2020
£000 2900
73,266 22436
14,777 20,370
(29,069) -
18,753 13,681
2,490 1,986
2,802 2,809
(16,452) (15,473)
2,022 3,170
(2,876) 2,931)
65,713 46,048
94 432
6,491 69,683
13,191 {113,640)
85,489 6,323
2021 2020
£:000 £'000
24,991 32,306
9,657 12,091
340 -
(40,000) -
2,490 1,986
{13,168) (12,389)
1,759 2,490
(4,308) (3,615)
(18,239) 32,869
620 {46,993)
(6,548) (10,£27)
(24,167) . (24,251)




Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stetemoents

For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

33. Joint operations

The Croup has entered into a number of Joint operations with different partners for the purposes of undertaking specific
contracts. The principal Joint amangements within the Group {(excluding those between Group companies) are as follows:

Name of Joint arrangements Address Juint arrangement partners Coatrol

Skanska Construction UK Limited

Skanska BAM Northem Hub Jaint Venture 1,7 BAM Nuttall Limited 50%
Costain Skanska C403 Joinl Venture 1,2 Castain Limited 50%
Costain Skanska C360 Joint Venture 1,2 Costain Limited 50%
Costain Skanska CAL2 Jaint Venture 1,2 Castain Limited 50%
. Balfour Beatty Utility Solutions Limited /
SMB Joint Venture 1,45 MWH Treatment Limited 33%
. UK Grid Solutions Limited /
SEESA AMS Joint Yenture 1,9,10 Mot: Macdonald Limited 20%
Costain Skanska Joint Venture - LPT 1,2 Costnin Limited  47.38%
tRIIO 1.8 Morrison Water Service Limited 50%
HS82 Enabling 1,2 Costain Limited 50%
HS2Z Main Warks SCS 51 1,2,6 Strabag AG-UK Branch / Costain Limited 34%
HS82 Main Works 8CS 52 1,2,6 Strabag AG-UK Branch / Coslain Limited 3%
Skanska Porr A-Hak Joint Yenture 1,112 Porr Bau GmbH / A-Hak International B.V. 40%
Bakerloo Line Link Joint Venture 1.2 Costain Limited 50%
. . 2,4 Balfour Beatty Civil Engincering Limited / o
Al4 Huntingdon to Cambridge Costain Limited 313%
Skanska ESS Canstruction Handelsbolag 1,13 Skanska Sverige AB 25%
Tensberg Joint Venture 1,14 Skanska Norge AS 30%
Skanska UK PL.C
RAF Molesworth i.15 Black & Veatch Limited 50%
Cementation Skanska Limited
Cementation Skanska Balfour Beatty GE Joint 1.3 Balfour Beatty Ground Enginecring Limited 50%
Venture
Skanska J.V. Projects Limited
Skanska Balfour Beatty M25 Joint Venture 1,4 Balfour Beatty Civil Engineering Limited 50%

The addresses of these Joint arrangements are as follows:

I Maplc Cross House, Denham Way, Maple Cross, Rickmansworth, Hertfordshire, WD3 95W
2 Costain House, Vanwall Business Park, Maidenhead, Berkshire, SL6 4UB

3 The Curve Building Axis Business Park Hurricane Way Langley Berkshire SL3 8AG

4 5 Chwrchill Place, Canary Wharf, London, E14 SHU

5 Spring Lodge, {72 Chester Road, Helsby, Cheshire, WAS DAR

6 Suabag AG UK Branch, The Tower, 3rd Floor 65 Buckingham Gate, London, SWIE 6AS
7 5t James House, Knolt Road, Camberley, Surrey, GUI15 3XW

8 Abcl Smith House, Gunnels Wood Road, Stevenage, Herts SG1 28T

9 5t Leonards Building, Hatry Ketr Drive, Stafford, ST16 1WT

10 Mott Macdonald House, 8-10 Sydenham Road, Croydon, Surrey, CR0O 2EE

11 Absberggasse 47, 1100 Vienna, Austria

12 Stecnoven 2-6, NL-4196 HG Tricht, the Netherlands

13 Warfvinges viig 25, SE-112 74, Stockholm, Sweden

14 Lakkegata 53 0187, Oslo, Norway

15 1 Famham Road, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 4RG

34, Paost balance sheet events

There have been no post balance sheet events that require disclosure or adjustment in these financial staternents.
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